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CORPORATE INFORMATION
TRER

The corporate information of the Company during the year and up to the date of this

report are as follows:

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr: Hu Yebi (Chairman, appointed on 23 April 2015)

Mr: Niu Zhongjie (CEO, appointed on 23 April 2015)

M. Zhu Shixing (appointed on 24 December 2015)
Mr: Lam KaTak (appointed on 24 December 2015)
Ms. Leung Pui Man (appointed on 23 April 2015)
MrYu Ho Yuen, Sunny (resigned on 23 April 2015)

Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (resigned on 23 April 2015)
Mr: Law Kai Lo, Niki (resigned on 23 April 2015)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming (appointed on 23 April 2015)
Mr: Xin Luo Lin (appointed on 23 April 2015)

Mr: Pan Lihui (appointed on 23 April 2015)

Mr:Wei Jin Cai (resigned on 23 April 2015)

Dr. Zhang Xianlin (resigned on 23 April 2015)

Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (resigned on 23 April 2015)

REGISTERED OFFICE

3rd Floor, Queensgate House
I'13 South Church Street
PO. Box 10240

Grand Cayman, KY'1-1002

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN HONG KONG

Units [111-12

I Ith Floor; Lu Plaza
2 WingYip Street
Kwun Tong

Hong Kong
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CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Harneys Services (Cayman) Limited
3rd Floor, Queensgate House

['13 South Church Street

PO. Box 10240

Grand Cayman, KY [-1002

Cayman Islands

COMPANY SECRETARY
MrWong Cheuk Lam CPA Australia, HKICPA

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Niu Zhongjie
Mr.Wong Cheuk Lam

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming
Mr: Xin Luo Lin
Mr. Pan Lihui

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Hu Yebi

Mr. Niu Zhongjie

Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming
Mr. Xin Luo Lin

Mr: Pan Lihui

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming
Mr: Hu Yebi

Mr. Niu Zhongjie

Mr: Xin Luo Lin

Mr: Pan Lihui
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
TRER

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

STOCK CODE
1803
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

BB E
RESULTS
£
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR FHT THT THIT FHET
Revenue g 510,793 907473 806,713 674,197 603,736
Gross profit EM 68,896 163,652 214711 184,899 185578
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),/ &7 (38,834) 12,883 92,706 90,076 99,121
(Loss)/profit attributable to: TR IEEG
(&518), /A
Equity holders of the Company AR BIEFHEA A (40,612) 13,117 93050 89,943 97305
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,778 (234) (344) 133 1,816
(38,834) 12,883 92,706 90076 99,121
Total Assets BEE 247,123 429,087 438,964 344,794 214612
Total Liabilities EEY=Ni 135,765 369,542 138826 103513 98,775
BEYREREBRAA

—E-LFER



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of ASR Logistics
Holdings for the financial year ended 31 December 2015 (the “Year").

The Year was full of challenges as supply outnumbered demand with slower global
economic recovery dragging demand for air cargo and increasing supply of freight
space with entry of new airlines. Meanwhile, operating costs did not fall alongside
declining demand and the operating environment was very difficutt. To cope with the
aforementioned difficulties, the Group took numerous measures to reduce costs, including
closing inefficient subsidiaries and offices across the world, significantly cutting headcount
and shrinking general and administrative expenses. During the Year, the Group shut down
25 offices and staff number significantly dropped from approximately 250 to approximately
105. Despite continuous efforts, the Group failed to revert the slide in its performance.
Total revenue of the Group decreased from approximately HK$907,473,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2014 to HK$510,793,000 for the Year, representing a decrease
of 44%. The profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company recorded loss of
approximately HK$40,612,000 for the Year, while it recorded profit of approximately
HK$13,117,000 last year.

To overcome the hardship on its operations, the Group decided to develop new business
to expand the revenue sources in addition to its original logistics business. After prudent
consideration, the Group decided to invest in China's sports related industry. The Group
believes sports industry is promising in China as national policy support and the hosting
of large sports events like Beijing Winter Olympic Games will drive the development
of related industries. We understand that the development of new business cannot be
completed overnight and the Group is carefully deploying in view of talents, resources,
systems and finance in a bid to establish a healthy business structure rapidly and capture

excellent investment opportunities in the market.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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PROSPECTS

The prospect of the air logistics business hinges on whether global economic recovery
could gather pace, but current condition is not rosy. In Asia-Pacific region, the Indian
market still enjoys considerable growth momentum. However; prospect in European and
US remains dim. Besides, overcapacity will remain a long-term problem. The Group will
continue keeping its logistics business' operating scale small, improving operating efficiency

and bracing challenges in the future.

For new business, the Group will attract more talents and increase related investment to
satisfy the demand from developing sports business in China. In addition, the Group will
comply with China's grand policy for developing the sports industry and strive to win more

projects to create profit for shareholders.

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to the
management and diligent employees of the Group, whose joint efforts are indispensable to
the growth of the Group. | wish the Group would enjoy better growth in the coming year,
and | will work together with all directors and employees to create a more prosperous

future.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Hu Yebi

Chairman of the Board

29 March 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

OVERVIEW

The Group has reported a loss attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$40.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: profit HK$13.1 million). In 2015,
volume of cargo handled decreased to 22,739 tons (2014: 69,184 tons), revenue fall by
44% to HK$510.8 million (2014: HK$907.5 million) and gross profit was HK$68.9 million
(2014: HK$163.7 million) with gross profit margin at 3% (2014: 18%).

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: Nil).

During the vyear ended 3| December 2015, the Group has implemented cost control
measures aiming to reduce staff costs and office rental and related expenses. Number of
employees was reduced from 258 as at 31 December 2014 to 105 as at 3| December
2015. Number of offices was consolidated from 37 in total as at 31 December 2014 to 12
in total as at 31 December 2015. However, weak cargo demand and over-capacity in the
air cargo market continues to put downward pressure on yield performance, there was
significant decrease in results of our Group from a profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$13,117,000 for the year ended 31 December
2014 to a loss attributable to the equity holders of the Company of approximately
HK$40,612,000 in the same period of 2015.

Notwithstanding the failure to comply with the restrictive financial covenant requirement
of certain banking facilities as mentioned in notes 2.1(a) of this annual results, the Group
has renewed the facilities agreement with two banks in December 2015 and March 2016
respectively. As at the date of approving this results, the Group is in compliance with the

restrictive financial covenant requirements under the renewed banking facilities.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In the opinion of the Director, the Group will have sufficient financial resources to finance
its operations and to fulfill its bank guarantee requirements and financial obligations as and

when they fall due in the coming twelve months from the date of the balance sheet.

CHANGE IN CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Immediately after completion of the acquisition of Shares pursuant to a share purchase
agreement dated 10 December 2014, on 12 January 2015, Hollyview International Limited,
Excellent Success Asia Limited, Mass Talent Financial Limited and Mr Sang Kanggiao
(collectively the “Joint Offerors”) became interested in an aggregate of 560,000,000
Shares, representing approximately 69.4% of the entire issued share capital of the
Company. Accordingly, Changjiang Corporate Finance (HK) Limited, on behalf of the Joint
Offerors, made an unconditional mandatory cash offer (the “Offers”) for all the issued
Shares not already owned and/or agreed to be acquired by the Joint Offerors and/or
parties acting in concert with it. The composite document on the Offers was despatched

to the Shareholders on 16 March 2015.The Offers were closed on 8 April 2015.

Details of above were disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 24 December

2014 and 8 April 2015, and composite document dated |6 March 2015.

THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 12 May 2015, on 5 May 2015,
the Company and BEPEBEEEEFBEMR DA (Capital Healthcare Group*) (the
"Proposed Subscriber”) entered into a non-legally binding memorandum of understanding
(the "Memorandum of Understanding”) setting out the preliminary proposed terms and
conditions in relation to the possible subscription for the 900,000,000 new shares of the
Company issued to the Proposed Subscriber and the convertible bonds in the principal
amount of HK$180,000,000 convertible into 300,000,000 new shares of the Company,
which may be allotted and issued by the Company upon exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the bonds, by the Proposed Subscriber (the “Possible Subscription”).
Reference should be made to the Company's announcement dated 12 May 2015 for the

details of the Possible Subscription.

* For identification purpose only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 10 September 2015, the parties to
the Memorandum of Understanding entered into a deed of termination on 10 September
2015 to terminate the Memorandum of Understanding by mutual consent with effect from
the date of the deed of termination and would not proceed with the Possible Subscription

and the transactions contemplated under the Memorandum of Understanding.

The Board considered that the termination of the Memorandum of Understanding has
no material adverse impact on the existing business operation and financial position of the

Group.

ACQUISITION OF VISION FINANCE ASSET MANAGEMENT LIMITED
On 23 September 2015, the Company and Vision Finance Group Limited and M

Zhang Chengliang (the “Vendors”) entered into the sale and purchase agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase, and
the Vendors have conditionally agreed to sell the 5,000,000 shares in Vision Finance Asset
Management Limited (the “Target Company"), representing the entire issued share capital
of the Target Company (the “Sale Shares”) at a total cash consideration of HK$7,000,000.
The Directors were of the view that the acquisition could diversify the business of the

Group with the objective of broadening its sources of income.

Vision Finance Group Limited, as one of the Vendors, was indirectly owned as to 36.75%
by Ms. Li Ling Xiu (“Ms. Li") who was the spouse of Mr. Hu Yebi (“Mr. Hu"). Mr. Hu was an
executive Director and indirectly held approximately 18.32% of the issued share capital of
the Company. By virtue of relationship between Mr. Hu and Ms. Li, Vision Finance Group
Limited was considered as a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules.
As a result, the transaction under the Agreement constituted a connected transaction
of the Company under Chapter [4A of the Listing Rules. Reference should be made to
the announcement of the Company dated 23 September 2015 for the details of the

acquisition.

On 7 January 2016, after careful consideration of all the circumstances such as the volatility
of the capital market, the Company and the Vendors entered into a termination agreement
to terminate the Agreement. The Board considered that the termination of the Agreement
would not have any material adverse impact on the financial position and operation of the

Group.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

A RB BEA015F9 A 108 2 AEFTH
BB Z AT R R2015F9 108 7]
MR ERBREE REL I SRRERS . 818
I REEERA AR WA EEITAE
RESHERRRESSIE T RET LIRS

EZEeRRRIETEATRLI T EHAKE

ZRAEBELERMBIRREKERTF
@,

KEEEeMEEERARAR
R0I5FIABH  AARIEEE /&
{E/N jﬁgﬁﬁﬂﬁiwajﬂ)g BEE

& ([ZmEl) Bt ARAEERHERE
BEMEACEKHRAELEREeREE
BEARATR ([BRRAF]]) 250000008 8%
- HERBERRRAZEHEEHTRA ([HH
ERm]) - BREREA700000078 7T EF
R WESEUZTCAREE %7 I
BAEBARNR -

EEeRERBERAR (EREH 2—) Bl

FEAE ([MHEE]) cEBFEBELL ([F
Lt |)BEEE367% % - i E BRITE
ERFBEFARARDBEITRAZ4718.32% °
ERRTERTL T 2 BER BB LTHRA
EEoREERRA T%&"ﬁ?%zt&“ﬂz&%z@
AT Bt RIBE ETHRANE 4AE - L

zi%*ﬁﬁ%@aﬁz—lﬁﬁhx%oﬁ%ﬁu&z
BEEMNFE B28AQR A HA0I5F9
ABBZzRE.

2016F 1 A78  EEEEEMARBR (WE
KB ZRE) 1% RRBIERE R &I

B KR - R RAL L KIHES
FEUAEE HBHHAREEEREAE
il sk



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MAJOR TRANSACTION INVOLVING ISSUE OF CONSIDERATION SHARES
UNDER THE GENERAL MANDATE

On 8 November 2015, Lucky Outset Investments Limited (“Lucky Outset”, the purchaser
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), the Company (the guarantor of Lucky
Outset), United Win International Corporation (“United Win", the vendor and a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of BEMH) and Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry
Group Limited (“BEMH”, the guarantor of United Win), entered into the sale and purchase
agreement (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) in relation to the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of Nobletree Limited (the “Nobletree Sale Share”), and the total
amount of shareholders’ loan owing by Nobletree Limited to United Win on the date of
completion of this acquisition (the “Sale Loan") for the consideration of HK$85,150,000
(the "Consideration”), which was satisfied by the Company by allotting and issuing of
a total of 131,000,000 shares of the Company (the “Consideration Shares”) at the
issue price of HK$0.65 per Consideration Share to United Win (or its nominees) upon
completion pursuant to the general mandate granted at the annual general meeting of the

Company dated 2 June 2015 (the “Acquisition of Nobletree").

Nobletree Limited is an investment holding company and is holding the property
which consists of two units of office premises located at Room [110-11, Ilst Floor
Harbour Centre, 25 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong with the gross floor area of
approximately 3,952 square feet (the “Property”).

The Consideration was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the parties by
reference to (i) the net asset value of Nobletree Limited as at 31 October 2015; (i) the
preliminary valuation of the Property of approximately HK$87,000,000 as at 31 October
2015; and (iii) the Sale Loan.

The Directors considered that the Acquisition of Nobletree would strengthen the asset

and/or income base of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

As one of the relevant percentage ratios, exceeds 25% but less than 100%, the Acquisition
of Nobletree constituted a major transaction for the Company under Chapter 4 of the
Listing Rules. As the Company obtained the written shareholders” approval of the majority
of shareholders of the Company in lieu of holding a general meeting for the approval of the
Acquisition of Nobletree pursuant to Rule 14.44 of the Listing Rules, therefore no general

meeting of the Company was convened to approve the Acquisition of Nobletree.

The Acquisition of Nobletree was completed on 18 December 2015. A total of
131,000,000 Consideration Shares were allotted and issued on 18 December 2015.
Upon completion, Nobletree Limited became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and the financial results of it was consolidated into the Group's consolidated

financial statements.

Reference should be made to the announcement of the Company dated 8 November
2015 and the circular of the Company dated 9 December 2015 for the details of the
Acquisition of Nobletree.

SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN

In order to strengthen the liquidity of the Group, the Company (the “Borrower”)
entered into two shareholder’s loan agreements with Hollyview International Limited
(the “Lender”), a substantial shareholder of the Company, on 10 November 2015
(the “Hollyview Loan Agreement”) and 24 November 2015 (the “Hollyview Facility

Agreement”) (together the “Shareholder’s Loan Agreements™).

Pursuant to the Hollyview Loan Agreement, the Lender agreed to lend HK$5,000,000 to
the Borrower at the interest rate of 2.5% per annum which was determined after arm'’s
length negotiations between the parties by reference to the then prevailing bank lending
interest rate. The loan under the Shareholder’s Loan Agreement | was due on the second
anniversary of the Hollyview Loan Agreement if not paid earlier The Lender could request

the Borrower to pay the loan amount and accrued interest on demand.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to the Hollyview Facility Agreement, the Lender agreed to lend to the Borrower
from time to time such amount or amounts, not to exceed an aggregate outstanding
principal amount of HK$30,000,000 at any time, as it may have required to meet its day-to-
day operational expenses and working capital needs at the interest rate of 2.5% per annum
which was determined after arm’s length negotiations between the parties by reference
to the then prevailing bank lending interest rate. The loan under the Hollyview Facility
Agreement was due on the second anniversary of the Hollyview Facility Agreement if not
paid earlier The Lender could request the Borrower to pay the loan amount and accrued

interest on demand.

Subsequently, in March 2016, the Lender agreed not to demand repayment of any amount
drawn under the Shareholder's Loan Agreements before the respective termination date

of these agreements.

As the Borrower was the substantial shareholder of the Company, the loans under
the Shareholder's Loan Agreements constituted connected transactions in the form of
financial assistance in favour of the Group. However, as the loans under the Shareholder’s
Loan Agreements were not secured by any assets of the Group, and were provided on
normal commercial terms, the loans were fully-exempted from shareholders’ approval,
annual review and all disclosure requirements under the Chapter |4A of the Listing Rules

pursuant to Rule [4A.90.

PROSPECT

Looking ahead to 2016, the overall air cargo business environment will remain challenging.

Over-capacity will continue to be a major issue.

In view of the rising operating costs, the Group will implement further cost control
measures such as consolidating our offices and reducing headcounts, reducing marketing,

promotional and all non-revenue direct driven expenditures activities.

Notwithstanding the difficult market environment in the air cargo industry on wholesaling
and reselling, over-capacity in air cargo and the rising costs in labor, offices and other
operating costs, the management will maintain our commitment to grow our core business
and concurrently explore new revenue streams with optimized operating costs, to bloom

the profitability of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWR DN

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue

The Group's revenue amounted to approximately HK$510.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2015, representing a decrease of approximately 44% when compared with last
year: This was due to a decrease in air cargo handled by the Group, from 69,184 tons for

the year ended 3| December 2014 to 22,739 tons for this year

Gross Profit

Overall gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 57.9% from approximately
HK$163.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2014 to approximately HK$68.9
million for this year, and overall gross profit margin decreased from approximately 18.0% to
approximately 13.5% respectively. The contractions were due to excess capacity available

on the market.

Administrative Expenses

For the year ended 3| December 2015, the Group's administrative expenses amounted
to approximately HK$88.9 million (2014: approximately HK$137.9 million), representing
an decrease of approximately 35.5% when compared with last year, which accounted for
approximately 17.4% of the Group's turnover (2014: approximately 15.2%). The decrease
in administrative expenses was mainly due to the decrease in number of employees and

offices.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

The Group had an un-utilised bank facility of approximately HK$79.5 million as at
31 December 2015 and the facility was mainly secured by the pledged deposits of
approximately HK$6.4 million of our Group and keyman insurance policies. In March
2016, the total banking facilities decreased from HK$136.6 million to HK$63.4 million due
to the renewed banking facilities granted to the Group. Certain airlines and integrated
carriers would require their air cargo wholesalers to deliver bank guarantees before their
appointment. The aggregate guarantee amount provided was approximately HK$31.7
million as at 31 December 2015 (2014: approximately HK$80.1 million). Saved as disclosed

above, we had no material contingent liabilities and guarantees.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Contractual and Capital Commitments
As at 31 December 2015, the Group had operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$8.2 million (2014: approximately HK$13.7 million).

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to Renminbi and United States dollar: Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities. During the year 2015,
the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange risk because the exposure, after netting
off the assets and liabilities subject to foreign exchange risk, is not very significant. However,
our management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant

foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had 105 full-time employees (2014: 258).The Group
reviews remuneration and benefits of its employees annually according to the relevant
market practice and individual performance of the employees. Save for the social insurance
in China and the mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong, the Group has not
set aside or accrued any significant amount of money to provide for retirement or similar
benefits for its employees. The staff costs incurred for the year ended 31 December 2015

were approximately HK$48.5 million (2014: approximately HK$84.9 million).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the
year ended 3| December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is an air freight solution provider positioned in the wholesale market. The
Group principally involves purchasing air cargo space from airlines and/or integrated
carriers and on-selling such space to our customers, namely freight forwarders. Airlines
and integrated carriers generally engage their respective appointed wholesalers and freight
forwarders to market and/or on-sell their air cargo space for ease of management, cost
effectiveness and minimizing credit exposure instead of dealing with a large pool of freight
forwarders and shippers themselves. The Group's main role for airlines and integrated
carriers is to source a necessary amount of air cargos from freight forwarders on a timely

basis to enable them to maximise the utilisation of air cargo space of their aircrafts.

In addition, the Group will also be engaged in investments in the sport-related industry in
the PRC.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015 are set out in Note 7 to

the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 3| December 2015 are set out in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 48 to 49 of this annual

report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend in respect of
current year to the Shareholders. Details of the dividends are set out in Note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. An interim dividend of HKO.7 cents per share was paid
during the year ended 31 December 2014.The special dividend of HKI5 cents per share

was declared during the year ended 31 December 2014.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2015, accumulated loss of the Company amounted to HK$ 89 million
(2014 distributable reserve HK$10.7 million). Details of movements in reserves of the
Group during the year are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity to the

consolidated financial statements.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales and purchases of the Group attributable to its major customers and suppliers

respectively in the financial year were as follows:

EEEHRE

FEEFRMER
AEENMBFEDBRAEERF RIER
EHARHE RRBAT -

Year ended 3| December

BZNANBLEE

2015 2014

% of total % of total

turnover turnover

RREEXEN HEEEED

Bk B

The largest customer TAEP 2.6% 4.7%
Five largest customers AREP 10.1% 14.7%
% of total % of total

purchase purchase

LB ERRER

BOL B

The largest supplier RAHER 19.3% 15.6%
Five largest suppliers hRHEER 62.7% 50.6%

Al of the above five largest customers and suppliers of the Group are independent third
parties. To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company, has any

interest in any of the Group's five largest customers and suppliers as disclosed above.

BANK BORROWINGS
As at 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015, the Group did not have long-term bank

loans. As at 31 December 2015, the Group have short term borrowings of approximately
HK$25.1 million (2014: HK$33.6 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the finance lease liabilities of the Group were approximately
HKS0.1 million (2014: HK$0.2 million).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment during the year are set

out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

ORDINARY SHARES

Details of movements in ordinary shares of the Company during the year are set out in

Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is

set out on page 5 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association

or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company'’s shares for the year

ended 3| December 2015.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are as

follows:

Executive Directors

Mr: Hu Yebi (Chairman, appointed on 23 April 2015)
Mr: Niu Zhongjie (CEO, appointed on 23 April 2015)

Mr: Zhu Shixing (appointed on 24 December 2015)
Mr: Lam KaTak (appointed on 24 December 2015)

Ms. Leung Pui Man (appointed on 23 April 2015)
MrYu Ho Yuen, Sunny (resigned on 23 April 2015)

Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (resigned on 23 April 2015)
Mr: Law Kai Lo, Niki (resigned on 23 April 2015)
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr: Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming (appointed on 23 April 2015)
Mr: Xin Luo Lin (appointed on 23 April 2015)

Mr: Pan Lihui (appointed on 23 April 2015)

MrWei Jin Cai (resigned on 23 April 2015)

Dr. Zhang Xianlin (resigned on 23 April 2015)

Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (resigned on 23 April 2015)

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographies of Directors and senior management of the Group are set out on pages 39 to

43 of this annual report.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, change in the information of the Director
since the date of the interim report 2015 and up to the date of this annual report of the
Company is set out below:

Name of Directors Details of Change

EEEHRE

BUFHTES

SERALE (R2015F4A230EERT)
EBEMELE (R20I155F4 AR EET)
B BAE (R2015F4A B3R EERT)
B8R4 A (20154 A23A BHT)
REMIBE L (R2015F48238EHT)
MHEB T (R20I5F48 3B ET)

EENEHEEERE
AEBEENSREEEREHN AFRE
39FE43H °

EZERNEE
BIEETRAIEI351B(NE BR20155FHH
BEBURREEARARRIAFHRAR EF
BEREEEHI T

EEnE 2HFE

Mr: Hu Yebi Appointed as an executive director of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 925) with effect from 23 December 2015

HRERLE BRERIERER (BR)BRAR (—HERBR EMOARE] - RO 925)NITES
B20155F 12823 £

Mr. Xin Luo Lin Appointed as a non-executive director of China Trends Holdings Limited, a company listed on the GEM
board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8171) with effect from | August 2015

FRMEE BZERTRBBERERAR (—ARBRAEIRR EMORE BHKE: 81718 EH

TEE B0I5F8AIBRAM

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting (“AGM") has an unexpired service contract with any member of the Group which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation

(other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in Note 19 of this report, no other contracts of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end

of the financial year under review or at any time during the financial year under review.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's
business, which competes or competed or is or was likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group's business at any time during the year ended 31 December 2015

and up to and including the date of this annual report.

PENSION SCHEME

In the PRC, the Group contributes to social insurance on a monthly basis for its employees.
The Group has no further obligation for payment of post-retirement benefits to employees

beyond the aforesaid contributions made by the Group.

The Group also participates in mandatory provident fund scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
and are under the control of an independent trustee. Both the Group and its employees
are required to contribute 5% of the employees’ monthly salaries. The mandatory
contributions required to be made respectively by the Group and an employee are each
capped at HK$ 1,500 commenced from | June 2014. Members are entitled to 100% of the
employers’ mandatory contributions as soon as they are paid to the MPF Scheme but all
benefits derived from the mandatory contributions must be preserved until an employee

reaches the retirement age of 65 or in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the

year ended 31 December 2015.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY OF
ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at the date of this report, the interests of the Directors in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“the Model Code")

EEEHRE

EERAQRASAEMEBEE 2R
HEROREERT2RER SXA

RARE BH EFRALR A SHE AR
B (ERREFLPEHRN ([EF LT
fBB1 1) SEXVER) Z B An A MY RC 8RR 3 A
%&Hﬁﬂ%fﬁﬂ%3521IK’ETEZ%E£%&$E?F
EHRAFFH EMBETAZSETESRR

contained in the Listing Rules, are as follows: RESTA (MR BRE AR 7&355‘“
Fre gz T
LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES REHOHFE
Number of
Ordinary Shares Percentage
Director Bz Nature of Interest BHEtE LERHA BAlt
Mr:Hu Yebi HHELE Corporate N 140,810,000 15.76%
Mr. Niu Zhongje bERRE Corporate NS 104,800,000 11.17%

LONG POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

REEEBNROREERONTE

Name of Associated Corporation Percentage
Director EE HELEEE Bat
Mr. Hu Yebi [ikaE=pites Hollyview International Limited 100%
Mr. Niu Zhongjie FEERE Mass Talent Financial Limited 100%

As at the date of this report, the Directors do not hold any short positions in shares,

underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief executives or any of their associates
had any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations which had been recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO as at the date of this report.
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EEEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES OR UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at the date of this report, the register of substantial Shareholders maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO shows that the Company had been notified of the following

substantial Shareholders’ interests and short positions, representing 5% or more of the

FERRRAFDFAZROTAEBRD 2 EER

KB

RAHRE BH RI5E 5 R E GG 33615
FEZIEZRRBLMBER AAREME
THEERRZEZRARBARRZEH

Company's issued share capital: FTRRANS%3, A I -
Number of
Ordinary Shares Percentage
Name ®E EBREE BOW
Hollyview International Limited (note (a)) Hollyview International Limited
(Fif&E@)) 147,810,000 15.76%
Mr. Hu Yebi (note (a)) HHELE (@) 147,810,000 15.76%
Excellent Success Asia Limited (note (b)) BAEIMNERRR (MED)) 140,193,750 14.95%
M. Cheung Man Kwong (note (b)) RIOE KA (HiEE (b)) 140,193,750 14.95%
Mass Talent Financial Limited (note (c)) Mass Talent Financial Limited ( Fi{3E (c) ) 104,800,000 [1.17%
M. Niu Zhongjie (note (c)) FgEE A (EE()) 104,800,000 11.17%
Mr. Sang Kanggiao ZEBEE 84,116,250 8.97%
United Win International United Win International
Corporation (note (d)) Corporation ( Hf#E(d)) 131,000,000 13.97%
Beijing Enterprises Medical and health Industry tEEERREXERERAA
Group Limited (“BEMH") (note (d)) (MHbrssiEr]) (M) 131,000,000 13.97%
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  MrHuYebi is the sole beneficial shareholder of Hollyview International Limited. @)  FAHESLAE BHollyview International LimitedH
—HHRE -
(b)  Mr Cheung Man Kwong is the sole beneficial shareholder of Excellent Success Asia Limited. b)) KXXREERERTEMNERAAR-—ER
PR -
(6 MrNiu Zhongjie is the sole beneficial shareholder of Mass Talent Financial Limited. (0  HHEE 54 AMass Talent Financial LimitedM—
(d)  BEMH is the sole shareholder of United Win International Corporation. (d) JEEBERE AUnited Win International

Save as disclosed above, no person had registered an interest of a short position in the

shares and underlying shares or debentures of the Company that was required to be

recorded under Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year

ended 3| December 2015 is contained in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of these related party transactions constitute a connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction which are subject to the reporting, announcement and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement in accordance with Chapter 14A of the

Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was conditionally
adopted by the written resolutions of the sole Shareholder of the Company passed on 3
December 201 1, pursuant to which the Board may, at its absolute discretion and on such
terms as it may think fit, grants options to any employee(s) (whether full time or part time
including any Director) of any member of the Group at the exercise price for such number
of Shares as it may determine in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Board to grant options to
selected eligible persons including employee(s) and Directors as incentives or rewards for

their contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 80,000,000 Shares (after adjustment for the sub-
division of Shares from nominal value of HK$0.01 per Share to HK$0.005 per Share in
2013) which represents approximately 10% of the Shares in issue on the date of approving
the Share Option Scheme. The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted and to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company to any employee(s) (including cancelled,
exercised and outstanding options), in any |2-month period up to the date of grant shall

not exceed |% of the Shares in issue from time to time.

EEEHRE

BHES
REBREZE20ISFENAINRIEEE VA
BHARINBES NGV BRRM
350

BEZEEB AL FHRELTERE 1ASHE
PRZBB ST DM KRB R AL ER TN
BEIHAHEHERS

BRETE
ADRIMERET S ([RBREE ) BAD
BIME— IR R A201 1 F2A3ABBNERRS
REGRHRG Bt EFU2EREER
BEAMETAAEETMEKE QAR TR
BE (THEBdRE 2EANES)RE
BRE HESRTEERBREBRET
EILiORCS N0 %Hmkﬁ cBEIREEE
EFEZEIRLBENSERATBER
EREERLBRE EFAREHAERE
sk AT BB 1 B R ) SR ED SR R

RITEREEARES 2 R AR BMEM A
PR 5t &I T I PR R AR A T AT A SR 1T BV AR 1)
88 LR - & HA5H1880,000000% i 7 (5t
W13FRMBERBRHEEIBTHFESE
PR AR 17000578 TTYE I B 1% ) (R BL/ERS
PRt 2 H BB BITRNK10%) - EBER
A B S ERE A BRER - EREER
1TE R IR B AR 5 8 R AR A BME M E b BB AR
RAIERERERENERE (2FEF
i BATE A RARITE B ARE ) M7 R
TERONKROEE LB THBEATREE
TR AEII% -

BEYREZERERA A
—E-LFER

23



2

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2015, no option was granted and the total number of
Shares available for issue under the Share Option Scheme as at the reporting date was
64,040,000, Shares representing approximately 6.83% of the total issued shares capital of
the Company at 31 December 2015.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at
any time during a period as the Board may determine but in any event shall not exceed 10
years from the date of grant. Save as determined by the Board and provided in the offer of
the grant of the relevant options, there is no minimum holding period before an option is

exercisable.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty-one days inclusive of the
day on which such offer was made. The amount payable to our Company on acceptance of

the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00.

The exercise price is to be determined by the Board provided always that it shall be at least
the higher of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer for the grant of the option, which must be a
trading day; and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant, provided that the exercise price shall in no event be less than the nominal

amount of one Share.

The Shares Option Scheme will expire on 2 December 2021 if not be terminated by any
general meeting earlier. The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme was 6 years at the

report date.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules

since the listing of the Shares on 16 January 2012.

MATERIAL LITIGATIONS AND ARBITRATIONS

During the year, the Group had no material litigations and arbitrations.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Events after the reporting period are set out in Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements in this report.

Except as set out in Note 38 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, no significant

events took place subsequent to 31 December 2015.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

By order of the Board

Hu Yebi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 March 2016
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Good corporate governance is conducive to enhancing the Group's overall performance
and accountability is essential in modern corporate administration. The Board, which
includes three independent non-executive Directors out of a total of eight Directors, is
responsible for setting strategic, management and financial objectives and continuously
observes the principles of good corporate governance and devotes considerable effort to
identifying and formalising best practice to ensure the interests of Shareholders, including

those of minority Shareholders, are protected.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited is incorporated in the Cayman Islands and has its shares
listing on the Stock Exchange on 16 January 2012 (the “Listing Date"). The corporate
governance rules applicable to the Company is on Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code from the
Listing Date until 31 March 2012 and with the revised Corporate Governance Code from
I April 2012 until 31 December 2015 respectively, except for the deviations from code

provisions A.6.7 and D.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code as described below.

Code Provision A.6.7

Under code provision A.6.7 of the Corporate Governance Code, the independent non-
executive Directors should attend the general meetings. However, the independent non-
executive Director; Mr. Xin Luo Lin was engaged in other meeting and did not attend the

annual general meeting of the Company held on 2 June 2015.

Code Provision D.| .4

Under the code provision D. .4, the Company should have formal letters of appointment
for directors setting out the key terms and conditions of their appointment. The Company
did not sign formal letters of appointment with Mr. Hu Yebi, Mr. Niu Zhongjie, Ms. Leung
Pui Man, Mr. Lok Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui. However, the said Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. In addition, the said Directors are required to
refer to the guidelines set out in “A Guide on Directors' Duties” issued by the Companies
Registry and “Guidelines for Directors” and “Guide for Independent Non-executive
Directors” (if applicable) published by the Hong Kong Institute of Directors in performing

their duties and responsibilities as directors of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD

The Company is headed by an effective Board which comprised eight members, consisting
of five executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors at 3|
December 2015.The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Group
and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising the Company's affairs. All Directors take decisions objectively in the interests of

the Company.

The Board met 10 times during the year ended 31 December 2015 for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering and approving the

overall strategies and policies of the Company. Details of the attendance records are set
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out below: BRH) IS DN T -

Number of Number of

Board Meetings General Meetings

Held During Held During
the Tenure Attendance the Tenure Attendance

ERERETH EERETH
Executive Directors HTES Ezegign HERY RRAEHA HEREY

Mr. Hu Hebi ik Ryt 8 8 |
Mr. Niu Zhongjie LEERE 8 8 | |
Ms. Leung Pui Man 2MELL 8 8 | |
Mr. Zhu Shixing M ELE 0 0 0 0
Mr. Lam Ka Tak MERELE 0 0 0 0
Mr. Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (resigned) RERTE (BEBHE) 2 2 0 0
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (resigned) 2551 50 4 (2 BHE) 2 2 0 0
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (resigned) BERLE (CEHAT) 2 2 0 0
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Number of

Board Meetings

Number of

General Meetings

Held During Held During
the Tenure Attendance the Tenure Attendance
Independent ERERETH EERNETH
Non-executive Directors VUHHTES Ezegign HERY RRAEHA HERY
Mr. Lok Yuen Ming LERTE 8 7 | |
M. Xin Luo Lin FRMEE 8 6 | 0
Mr. Pan Lihui RAESE A 8 5 | |
Mr.Wei fin Cai (resigned) WA A (BBHE) 2 2 0 0
Dr. Zhang Xianlin (resigned) RENEL (EFE) 2 2 0 0
DrTyen Kan Hee, Anthony (resigned) ~ H#EE T+ (2 & F) 2 2 0 0
The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirements of the EECRBBEARFEBTEMABHEER

business of the Company. The Board includes a balanced composition of executive and
independent non-executive Directors so that there is a strong independent element on

the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

The list of all Directors is set out under Corporate Information on page 2 and
the independent non-executive Directors are expressly identified in all corporate

communications pursuant to the Listing Rules.

The relationships among the members of the Board are disclosed under Biographies of

Directors and Senior Management on pages 39 to 43.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible to lead and control the business operations of the Group. It
formulates strategic directions, oversee the operations and monitor the financial and
management performance of the Group as a whole. Its role is clearly separated from
that of senior management. The Board is responsible for providing guidance for senior
management and maintaining effective supervision over senior management. Since the
day-to-day running of the Company has been delegated by the Board to the senior
management, the senior management is responsible for the implementation of the policies

resolved.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the chairman of the Board was Mr. Hu Yebi and
the chief executive officer of the Company was Mr. Niu Zhongjie. Their roles are separate
as the chairman of the Board is mainly to take care the strategic development of the Group

and the chief executive officer is responsible for day-to-day management of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rule 3.10 (1) of the Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors. All the independent non-executive Directors have
the appropriate qualifications in accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each of
the independent non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence as
required under the Listing Rules. Independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors has been assessed by the Board and the Board considers that all independent

non-executive Directors are independent as required under the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the Directors has been appointed for a term of three years and shall be subject to

retirement by rotation once every three years.

In accordance with the Company's articles of association, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and any new director appointed to
fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by

Shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

INDUCTION AND TRAINING OF DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the first occasion of his appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and

relevant statutory requirements.
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The Directors confirmed that they have complied with Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG
Code on Directors’ training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional

development by the following means to develop and refresh their knowledge.

Name of Directors Training received

REFDHR K
BEEIEIIZ TR

EEREBTLEERT
FEA6S5E 2R

Sl
EEEY

BEBTITAZEERLEHRENENL
REECHESRER-

R PR 2353

Mr. Hu Yebi — Reading materials/attending external seminars and programmes
HEELE —BEER2ERIFEBR AT EREEY

Mr. Niu Zhongjie — Reading materials/attending external seminars and programmes
FEERE —BEER2RIFEBRR AT EREEY

Mr. Zhu Shixing — Reading materials/attending external seminars and programmes
MBS A —BEER2RIFEBRR AT EREE

Mr. Lam Ka Tak

MEELE —BEEH2ERIFEBRR AT EREEY

Ms. Leung Pui Man

RRLL —BIEEN 2EINRBBRB AT G RED

Mr. Lok Yuen Ming

— Reading materials/attending external seminars and programmes

— Reading materials/attending external seminars and programmes

— Reading materials/attending external seminars and programmes

SKERLE —BEER 2RI FEBR AT EREEY
Mr. Xin Luo Lin — Reading materials/attending external seminars and programmes
FRMLE —BEER2RIFEBR AT EREEY
Mr. Pan Lihui — Reading materials/attending external seminars and programmes
BB L —BEER2RIFEBR AT EREEY

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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LIABILITY INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage in respect of legal action
against the Directors in compliance with code provision A.l.8. The insurance coverage is

reviewed on an annual basis.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements of the
Company with a view to ensuring that such financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and that relevant statutory and regulatory requirements

and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate effective and efficient
operations, to ensure reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable laws
and regulations, to identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the Group.
The internal auditor reviews and evaluates the control process, monitors any risk factors
on a regular basis, and reports to the audit committee on any findings and measures to

address the variances and identified risks.

During the year, the Board, through the audit committee, conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Company. The review covered the
financial reporting and compliance procedures of the Group. The Board also reviewed the
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company's accounting and financial reporting

function.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report

on pages 44 to 45.

For the year ended 3| December 2015, the remuneration paid or payable to the
Company's auditor; PricewaterhouseCoopers, amounted to approximately HK$1.8 million
(2014: HK$ 1.9 million) and HK$0.4 million (2014: HK$0.5 million) in respect of the annual

audit and non-audit services respectively.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with defined
written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on

the Company's website and the website of the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 |.The roles and

functions of the audit committee include the following;

. to review the financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the internal auditor or external auditor before submission to

the Board;

. to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference to the work
performed by the auditor; their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of

external auditor; and

. to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's financial reporting
system, internal control system and risk management system and associated

procedures.

As at the reporting date, the audit committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors (namely, Mr: Lok Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui) who
possess the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The chairman of the audit committee is Mr. Lok Yuen Ming, who
is an independent non-executive Director. None of the members of the audit committee
is a former partner of the Company's existing external auditor. The audit committee has
separate and independent access to the advice and services of the senior management
of the Company, and is able to seek independent professional advice at the Company's

expense upon reasonable request.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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The audit committee held two meetings during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
reviewed its revised terms of reference, the Group's annual results and report for the year
ended 31 December 2014, the Group's interim result and report for the period ended 30
June 2015, the financial reporting and compliance procedures, the corporate governance
matters, the report of internal auditor from the management on the Company's internal
control and risk management review and processes, and the appointment of the external
auditor; subject to approval by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting. Details of

the attendance records of the audit committee are set out below:

PN
TRERRE

B ZREEREEWNISFNRANBLEEER
BITMAGH  UEHELETNBESE -
AEEHZN04FNANAEFENEEE
BRRE  AEBEZ2015F6 7308 LA
MR EEERRE MBRRRERER 1
XEREHE NHREMBE AR BN EE
RERERTEEARFHEERFHNERER
BEINEZEA (ERRRBFRE LER
RELE) -BHEE ML FELRSF BRI M
T

Number of Meetings
Held During the

Tenure Attendance
EERETH

Member ME 8RB HERE
Mr. Lok Yuen Ming LEREE | |
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FREMEL | !
Mr. Pan Lihui BB E | !
Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (resigned) A#EELT (BEHE) | |
Mr.Wei Jin Cai (resigned) et 4 (BT | |
Dr. Zhang Xianlin (resigned) REMEL (BEFE) | |

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 1. The

roles and functions of the remuneration committee include the following:

. making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy and structure

and remuneration packages of the executive Directors and the senior management;

. establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his associates will participate in

deciding his own remuneration; and

. determining annual remuneration package by reference to the performance of the

individual and the Company as well as market practice and conditions.
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As at the reporting date, the remuneration committee comprises five members, namely,
Mr: Hu Yebi, Mr. Niu Zhongjie, Mr: Lok Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui, the
majority of which are independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of remuneration
committee is Mr. Lok Yuen Ming, who is an independent non-executive Director. Three
meetings were held by the remuneration committee during the year ended 31 December
2015. The remuneration committee reviewed its revised terms of reference and

emolument of newly appointed Directors during the meetings. Details of the attendance

records of the remuneration committee members are set out below:

RBERH FMEESRETEKE A

BREE FEERE LEPLE FEMN
EERBIBEE KEDABILIERTE
E HMEE eI REAB LN TEELE
REE - HMEZEGREZE2015F 1243181
FEACRT=ZREZ -FTHEESNER
HEERELETNRESE RN EESH
e - FMEB ML RSB MT

Number of Meetings
Held During the

Tenure Attendance
EERETH

Member 54 =] 2R¥YA HERE
Mr. Lok Yuen Ming LERTE 2 2
Mr. Hu Yebi HEELE 2 2
Mr. Niu Zhongjie HEEEE 2 2
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FRMAE 2 |
Mr. Pan Lihui BB E 2 2
Dr. Zhang Xianlin (resigned) REMEL (EEHT) | |
Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Sunny (resigned) REREE (BET) | |
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (resigned) BEERE (BBHE) I I
MrWei Jin Cai (resigned) RV %% (BBE) | |
Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (resigned) E#EEL (BT | |

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee was established by the Board on 3 December 201 . The roles

and functions of the nomination committee include the following:

. reviewing the Board structure;
. monitoring the nomination, appointment and succession planning of Directors; and
. assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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As at the reporting date, the nomination committee comprises five members, namely Mr. RBERM REZESRETEKE A
HuYebi, Mr. Niu Zhongjie, Mr. Lok Yuen Ming, Mr. Xin Luo Lin and Mr. Pan Lihui the majority B4 485504 - LEMRLE - FEMN
of which are independent non-executive Directors. The chairman of the nomination FTHERELERE RBORBIUIFNITE
committee is Mr. Hu Yebi, who is the chairman of the Board. Three meetings were held by P2 REZEGIRRESSIRNHE

the nomination committee during the year ended 31 December 2015. The nomination HoREZBEREZEWNISFINAIALEFE

committee reviewed the composition of the Board and made recommendations to the NBRIT=-AeH - RELZEeEHESS
Board on the appointment of two Directors. Details of the attendance records of the HREREAMBESNESSRMESE
nomination committee members are set out below: FoRAZEGNHFELHFBEINWT

Number of Meetings

Held During
the Tenure Attendance

EERETH
Member |54 =] 2R¥YA HERE
Mr. Hu Yebi HEERE 2 2
Mr. Niu Zhongjie HEEEYE 2 2
Mr. Lok Yuen Ming LEREE 2 2
Mr. Xin Luo Lin FEMEL 2 2
Mr. Pan Lihui BB E 2 !
MrWei Jin Cai (resigned) RS %E (BBE) | |
Mr. Mak Chi Hung, Richard (resigned) BEWEE (BBHE) | |
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Niki (resigned) BIERSTE (BBIT) | |
Dr. Zhang Xianlin (resigned) REMEL (EET) | |
Dr.Tyen Kan Hee, Anthony (resigned) E#EEL (BT | |

The nomination procedures are governed by the terms of reference of nomination REIRFXNAR B R B A A8 A
= A

committee which are published on the Company's website and the website of the Stock ~ RIIR R Z B @ BEHERE o

Exchange.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY
The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect from 30 August 2013 and

discussed all measurable objectives set for implementing the policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of
its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender; age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and

contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance functions set out below:

. developing and reviewing the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance and making recommendations to the Board;

. reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional development of

Directors and senior management;

. reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices on compliance with

legal and regulatory requirements;

. developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual

(if any) applicable to Directors and employees ; and

. reviewing the Company's compliance with the code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules regarding securities transactions by Directors and senior management. After specific
enquiry, all Directors of the Company confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings set out in the Model Code since the listing of the Shares on 16 January

2012,

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wong Cheuk Lam was appointed as the company secretary of the Company on |1
May 2015. He is a full-time employee of the Company and has more than 10 years of
experience in being a company secretary of listed company. Mr:Wong has confirmed that
he has duly complied with the relevant requirement under Rule 329 of the Listing Rules
and taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. His biographical details
are set out in the paragraph headed “Directors’ and Senior Management's Biographies™ in

this report.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication between
the Board and the Shareholders. They provide an opportunity for Shareholders to
better understand the Group's operation, financial performance, business strategies and
outlook. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the nomination committee,
remuneration committee and audit committee or, in their absence, other members of
the respective committees are available to answer questions at Shareholder meetings. To
promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website at www.asr.com.
hk, where up-to-date information and updates on the Company's financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are posted. The Board, according
to the Listing Rules, will conduct voting at the forthcoming AGM by poll. The results of the
Company voting will be announced on the Company's website and the website of the

Stock Exchange.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company, any one or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) to be

called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition.
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The procedures for Shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM include
a written notice of those proposals being submitted by Shareholders, addressed to the
Board at the registered office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether the
proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution, or whether the proposal
relates to the election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a director. The
relevant procedures are set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of
this annual report to Shareholders and will be included with the notice to Shareholders of

any future AGM.

Article 88 of the Company's articles of association provides that if a Shareholder duly
qualified to attend and vote at the meeting wishes to propose a person other than a
Director of the Company for election as a Director at the general meeting, he/she/it shall
deposit a written notice to that effect at the principle place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for the attention of the Board. Such notice should also be signed by the
nominated candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected. In order to ensure
that Shareholders have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the
nominated candidate, such notice should be given to the Company within seven days
after the dispatch of the notice of annual general meeting of the Company. Details of
the Shareholders' right to propose a person for election as a Director and the related

procedures are set out on the Company's website at www.asr.com.hk.

Shareholders may direct their questions about their shareholdings to the Company's
Registrar Enquiries may be directly put to the Board by questions at an AGM or EGM.
Questions on the procedures for convening or putting forward proposals and other
enquiries may also be made to the Board by writing to the Company Secretary at the
Company's office in Hong Kong at Units |1 11-12, I1th Floor, Lu Plaza, 2 Wing Yip Street,
Kwun Tong, Hong Kong.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this annual report, the Board consists of eight Directors, including five

executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Yebi ($EF 22 %4 ) , aged 52, was appointed as an executive Director and the
chairman of the Board with effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Hu is the founder and chairman
of Vision Finance Group Limited. Mr. Hu received his Master of Business Administration
from Netherlands International Institute for Management in the Netherlands and
Postgraduate Diploma in Management Engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology in
Beijing, the PRC. Mr: Hu has more than 24 years of experience in securities and financial
services, merger and acquisition and corporate finance. Mr. Hu also holds concurrent
executive directorships with Hua Lien International (Holding) Company Limited (Hong
Kong Stock Exchange Stock Code: 969), Bestway International Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong Stock Exchange Stock Code: 718) and Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (Hong
Kong Stock Exchange stock code: 925).

Mr. Niu, Zhongjie (4 $85E %4 ) , aged 47, was appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer of the Company with effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Niu
obtained a bachelor degree in Business Administration from Northeast Missouri State
University in May 1994. He also obtained a master degree in business administration from
the University of Hong Kong in December 1999. Mr. Niu has over |0 years of experience
in corporate finance industry. He is currently an executive director of Vision Finance

International Company Limited.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENREREEERERE

Mr. Zhu Shixing ( $LE B 564 ) | aged 45, was appointed as an executive Director of
the Company with effect from 24 December 2015. Mr. Zhu is currently an executive
director; chairman and member of investment and risk management committee of Beijing
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 2389). Mr: Zhu graduated from the Central University of Finance
and Economics with a bachelor's degree in finance and obtained his master degree in
software engineering from Beihang University. In addition, Mr. Zhu obtained a bachelor
degree in sport management from Beijing Sport University in July 1994. Mr. Zhu started
his career as an assistant in the investment department of the China Xinxing Corporation
(Group) Ltd.in 1994. During the period from 2004 to 2015, he joined the Beijing Holdings
Limited ("BHL"), an affiliate of Beijing Properties (Holdings) Limited (“BPHL", Stock Code:
925), and had been nominated the vice general manager of various subsidiaries of BHL
involving in industries of tourism, logistics, property development and the executive vice
president of BPHL. Mr. Zhu has extensive experience in investment, financial management

and property development.

Mr. Lam Ka Tak (#RZE @54 ) | aged 34, was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company with effect from 24 December 2015. Mr. Lam has over 10 years of experience in
accounting and financial matters. Mr. Lam currently served as the chief financial officer, the
company secretary, the authorized representative and the member of investment and risk
management committee of Beijing Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited,
a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the issued shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2389). During this period, Mr: Lam
was mainly responsible for overseeing the financial management, regulatory compliance
and investors related matters. He worked as an audit manager at KPMG from April 2006
to September 2010. Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor degree in Accountancy from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2003 and a Master in Business Administration
degree from The University of Hong Kong in November 2013. He was a member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants till June 2010 and has been a member of

the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2010.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Leung Pui Man (i Z 1), aged 38, was appointed as an executive Director
of the Company with effect from 23 April 2015. Ms. Leung obtained her Professional
Diploma in Business Administration and Professional Diploma in Accounting and Finance
(with distinction) jointly issued by Hong Kong Institute of Continuing Higher Education and
Max Education Centre in April 2010 and October 2009 respectively. Ms. Leung has over
10 years of experience in accounting. She worked in South Asia Knitting Factory Limited
in an accounting role between April 2000 and March 2010. She also worked in Hoi Po

Aluminium Industrial Company Limited between May 2010 and May 201 3.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming (44[BI 83 %£ 4 ) , aged 55, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director of the Company with effect from 23 April 2015. Mr. Lok has
more than 30 years of experience in public accounting, finance and commercial working
experience in Sydney and Hong Kong. Mr. Lok received his Master of Economics —
Professional Accounting from Macquarie University NSW Australia in 1988. He was
qualified as an accountant in 1987, and is an associate member of Hong Kong Society of
Accountants and a fellow member of Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He
has been the chief executive officer of CSI Investment Management Limited in Hong Kong
since 2001.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEERERE

Mr. Xin Luo Lin (FZMEHE), aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company with effect from 23 April 2015. Mr Xin was a
postgraduate from the Peking University in the PRC in 1980. He was a visiting scholar at
the Waseda University, Japan between 1980 and 1983, an honorary research associate
at the University of British Columbia, Canada during 1983 and 1984, and a visiting fellow
at the Australia National University, Australia from 1984 to 1985. He was appointed as
a Justice of the Peace in New South Wales of Australia in 1991. He was appointed as an
adviser to the chairman of Guangdong Capital Holdings Limited from 1998 to 2000. He
is an independent investor with over 20 years of experience in investment banking in
the PRC, Hong Kong and Australia. Mr. Xin is currently: (i) an independent non-executive
director of Enerchina Holdings Limited (stock code: 622) listed on the Stock Exchange;
(if) an independent non-executive director of Sinolink Worldwide Holdings Limited (stock
code: 1168) listed on the Stock Exchange; (iii) an independent non-executive director of
Central China Real Estate Limited (stock code: 832) listed on the Stock Exchange; (iv) a
non-executive director and honorary chairman of Asian Capital Holdings Limited (stock
code: 8295) listed on the Stock Exchange; (v) an independent non-executive director of
China Environmental Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 646) listed on the Stock
Exchange; (vi) a director of Asia Growth Capital, Ltd. a public company listed on the Tokyo
Stock Exchange; (vii) a director and vice chairman of Oriental Technologies Investment
Limited, a public company listed on the Australian Stock Exchange; and (viii) a non-
executive director of China Trends Holdings Limited (stock code: 8171) listed on the GEM
Board of the Stock Exchange. During the period from 26 August 2010 to 8 June 2012, Mr.
Xin was a non-executive director of Sino-Tech International Holdings Limited (stock code:

724) listed on the Stock Exchange.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pan Lihui (GB3ZJ8 554 ) | aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company with effect form 23 April 2015. Mr. Pan obtained a bachelor
degree in International Economics from Beijing University of International Relations in
the PRC in 1989. He has 25 years of experience in nonferrous metals industry. Mr. Pan
worked in8{= A IR 22 & (Mind Honour Limited) from 1994 to 1998 as a manager. Mr. Pan
founded Pentart Industrial Limited in 1998 and Able Plus International Limited in 2001 and

has since been a director and general manager of these two companies.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr.Wong Cheuk Lam ( EJFH5E4 ) | aged 47, was appointed as the chief financial officer,

the company secretary and an authorized representative of the Company with effect
from |1 May 2015. Mr Wong obtained a bachelor degree in arts from the University of
Hong Kong in 1992 and a master degree in business (accounting) from Victoria University
of Technology, Australia in 1997. Mr. Wong is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and CPA Australia, and a Certified Taxpay Strategist (PRC).
From 1994 to 2003, Mr. Wong worked in accounting positions for Sakura Finance Asia
Limited, BOCI Securities Limited and Going Accounting Services Company. From February
2003 to January 2013, he worked as company secretary at Zhengzhou China Resources
Gas Company Limited (ZBBM 2 B RA D BR 2 F), a company previously
named Zhengzhou Gas Company Limited and was listed on the Stock Exchange and
worked as chief financial officer from July 2005 to January 2013 and was also a financial
controller during the period from October 2007 to July 2010 of the same company. From
January 2015 to May 2015, Mr. Wong joined Genvon Group Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2389), as financial controller and
deputy company secretary. Since 5 November 2010, Mr. Wong has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Kingworld Medicines Group Limited (stock

code: | 110). He has over 20 years of experience in accounting and finance fields.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHMERE

_&
pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF ASR LOGISTICS HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 46 to
165, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2015, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or

error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person

for the contents of this report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of financial
position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 31 December 2015, and of their financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 March 2016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

As at 31 December 2015

#2015 124318
2015 2014
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
i &E FTHET FET
ASSETS E
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME BENIEE 5 6,637 9,202
Intangible assets BVEE 6 - 2,506
Investment properties REME 8 87,000 -
Available-for-sale financial assets AHLESMEE 9 13,605 15,653
Investment in an associated company R—HEBE AR ZRE 22 - -
Loan to an associated company [m] — R B & D RIEH 2 B3 2 - 3071
Long-term prepayments, deposit and RBEMNTKIE -ZER
other receivables Hofth & WK I8 12 331 582
Deferred income tax assets BEEMBHEE 10 - 1,506
il ho7s7y o 3250
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables H 5 R I 71,491 145,59
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables ~ TAfST /I8 ~ 2 I E A E UL FUR 12 10,251 12,105
Other current assets Hin e & &= - 3,096
Current income tax recoverable =N EC Y 391 -
Pledged deposits EEAEFR 13 6,388 6967
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 13 51,029 228,808
139,550 396,567
Total assets BEE 247,123 429,087
EQUITY g
Share capital AR 14 4,689 4034
Reserves (ki 15 104,558 53,286
109,247 57,320
Non-controlling interests RS 2,111 2,225
Total equity s 111,358 59,545

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REBEEREXR

As at 31 December 2015
72015612 A31H

2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
5% FTERT THET
LIABILITIES a8
Non-current liabilities FnBaE
Finance lease liabilities REMHEAE 20 65 170
Deferred income tax liabilities ELFREHAR 10 53 822
118 992
Current liabilities nEBEE
Trade payables B 5 N FIE 16 66,063 167,473
Finance lease liabilities BEHERR 20 64 73
Dividend payable JEE 1 AR B, - 121,029
Other payables and accruals H 5B R 5 & 17 22,096 38,858
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE 5 FE 2 B 1 25 IR 8 284 -
Loans from a shareholder BRERERK 19 20,043 -
Borrowings f& % 21 25,148 33610
Current income tax payable JE & HIFS 1,949 7,507
135,647 368,550
Towllbiies  __________________®8& 1765 _____ 36952
Total equity and liabilities HERKAE 247,123 429,087
The notes on pages 54 to 165 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FLAR 5B B SRS M ERERNA

statements.

The financial statements on pages 46 to 165 were approved for issue by the Board of

Directors on 29 March 2016 and were signed on its behalf.

Hu Yebi
HEE

Director

%

PRER D

F46Z 165 H MBI 53K B R2016F3829H
HESSIAETIE THUATRRESZ

Niu Zhongjie

HEE
Director

5%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ReEZERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12A31HLFE
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Uk TR TET
Revenue L& 23 510,793 907,473
Cost of sales HERAR 25 (441,897) (743821)
Gross profit EH 68,896 163,652
Other losses, net HihE1E  HH 24 (16,138) (5.266)
Other income Hit A 24 1,034 2,829
Administrative expenses TR X 25 (88,891) (137,938)
Operating (loss)/profit g (B18),aH (35,099) 23277
Finance (expenses)/income, net mE (R /WA F8 28 (1,032) 221
Share of profit/(loss) of an associated EiE—EsE RN/ (BE)
company 529 (664)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRFTISTIAT (&518) /% 7 (35,602) 22,834
Income tax expense ST 29 (3,232) (9,951)
(Loss)/profit for the year ER(BE) /&5 (38,834) 12,883
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hi2m (EE), e
[tems that have been reclassified or EEDEA A ESHE
may be reclassified to profit or loss: BmZEA -
Change in fair value of available-for-sale AftHESREEL AABEE L
financial assets (2,048) (762)
Currency translation differences bE =R (1,255) 310
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FR2E (BB) WaesE
for the year (42,137) 12,431

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEZEkER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12A31BLFE
2015 2014
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Uk THER TAET
(Loss)/profit attributable to: AT EIBEWG (BE),/&5H
— Equity holders of the Company —RRAERFEA (40,612) 13,117
— Non-controlling interests —FEPEAR R 1,778 (234)
(38,834) 12,883
Total comprehensive (loss)/income NTEEREEE
attributable to: (B18) W
— Equity holders of the Company —RRAERFEA (43,703) 12,409
— Non-controlling interests — IR E R 1,566 22
(42,137) 12,431
HK Cents HK Cents
&l Al
(Loss)/earnings per share for (loss)/profit ARAERFFE ARG
attributable to equity holders of (B8B),/&HETR
the Company (B1])/BH
~ Basic —EXR 30(a) (5.00) .64
- Diluted -8 30(b) (5.00) 1.63
HK$000 HK$'000
TER TET
Dividends g 3 - 126,629

The notes on

statements.

pages 54 to |65 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial

F54E SR AZERAVIEHREMNA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
MERRBER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12A31HLFE
Autributable to equity holders of the Company
FRRRREEARL
Available-for-
sale assets
Share-based ~ financial assets Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange  Statutory and payment  revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserves legal reserves reserve reserves Sub-total losses Total interests  Total equity
WER  TfHE
EER  RERH  SHEE
Ra  RMEE  ERRE  ERBRE  GERE ARNBR  ERER M RHER £ FERER L 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$000 HK$000
TERL TEn TEn TR Fikn Fin Fién Fién Fin Fin - TR
Balance at | January 2015 R0ISEIRIB &R 4,034 51,561 5845 3648 2810 2458 (762) 69,654 (12334 57320 2225 59,545
Comprehensive loss 2EFR
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - - - - (40612) (40612) 1778 (38834)
Other comprehensive loss Afb2EEE
Currency translation differences EizS - - - (1.043) - - - (1,04) - (1,08) 21 (1,255)
Fair value loss on avaiable-for-sale ARHESREEL
financial assets NMEEER - - - - - - (2,048) (2048) - (2048) - (2048)
Total comprehensive loss EFREE - - - (1043) - - (2048) (3.091) (40612) (43,703) 1,566 (2,137
Transactions with owners HEEANR S
Release upon cancelation of EEBERE
vested share options THEE - - - - - (2458) - (2458) 2458 - - -
Accuistion of a subsidiary WE-HNELT 655 94975 - - - - - 95,630 - 95,630 - 95,630
Dividend to non-controling interests 1 TS RiER 2R & - - - - - - - - - - (1,680) (1,680)
Totd transactions vith owners SERADRSEE 655 94975 - - - (2.458) - BI72 2458 95,630 (1680) 93950
Balance at 3| December 2015 R0ISERA3IBEH 4689 146,536 5845 2605 2810 - (2810) 159,735 (50488) 109,247 Al 111,358

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2015



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREBREHR

For the year ended 31 December 2015

BE2015F12A31HILFE
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
FRAREREAEE
Available-forsale Retained
Share-based financial assets eamings/ Non-
Share Share Capital Exchange  Statutory and payment  revaluation accumulated controling
apital premium reserve reserves  legal reserves reserve reserves Sub-total losses Total interests  Total equity
WG AHEE
EER RERE  SREE RBEH/
kx  RiGERE  AABE  EXEE  RERE NROEE  EUEE PGt RHEA @it FEkEs s
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TR L L L THL Tk Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt Tt
Balance at | January 2014 R014F | A1 B 4000 72565 5990 3594 2675 1519 - 90343 208526 298869 1269 300,138
Comprehensive income 2EYE
Proft for the year FREN - - - - - - - - 13117 13117 (234) 12683
Other comprehensive income A2 ENE
Currency translation differences EnzE - - - 54 - - - 54 - 54 25 310
Fair value loss on avaiable-forsale ARHESREEL
financial assets MBEER - - - - - - (76) (76) - (762) - (762)
Total comprehensive income 2ENRER - - - 54 - - (76) (708) 13117 12409 n 12431
Transactions with owners BEFANRS
Dividends & - (2747) - - - - - (27247) (23378) (261029) - (261029)
Acquisition of a subsidiary i -HHBAR - - - - - - - - - - 8 18
Establshment of subsidaies Ll - - - - - - - - - - 769 769
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETHE - - - - 195 - - 195 (195) - - -
Exercise of share options TekEhE 4 6243 - - - - - 6277 - 6277 - 6277
Partial disposal of a subsidiary to HE-AWELALS
non-controling interest BaTHERER - - (149) - - - - (145) - (145) 147 1
Share-based payment DR BETREF - - - - - 939 - 939 - 939 - 939
Total transactions with owners REFANIHEE 34 2100 (149) - 195 939 - (19981)  (33977)  (253958) 934 (253024)
Balance at 31 December 2014 R0I4E1A3IBEH 4034 515! 5845 3648 2870 248 (760) 69,654 (12334) 57320 2225 59,545
The notes on pages 54 to 165 are an integral part of these consolidated financial 54T S E RIS AR e AMBRENE

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12A31HLFE
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
i &E TR FTET
Operating activities: REES:
Cash (used in)/generated from operations rEEE (A /ERe 32(a) (56,769) 117,707
Income tax paid ERPRER (8,444) (19,651)
Net cash (used in)/generated REEE (FTA) / BREFE
from operating activities (65,213) 98,056
Investing activities: REEE:
Cash acquired in acquisition of WEEMT B AR Mk
subsidiaries, net of consideration paid BERREEMERSE 34 2 223
Investment in an associated company R—EEE AR E - (588)
Interest received e E) 245 578
Addition to investment properties REREME 8 (963) -
Purchase of intangible asset BERVEE - (687)
Purchase of available for sale assets BEUHLEEE - (16415)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME BELREE 5 (2,807) (6,447)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME HEMZED
plant and equipment TS 503E 32(b) 680 1,615
Repayment of loans to an associated m—HEE R REEER
company 22 3,600 -
Proceeds from partial disposal of HE—FBMNBE AR
a subsidiary to non-controlling interest T IR AR & ) P15 5K - 2
Net cash generated from/(used in) REZBME/ (FR)REFE
investing activities 757 (21,719)
Financing activities: BMETE:
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERAERIE 24377 61,238
Proceeds from shareholder's loans RREKA1EHRIE 20,043 -
Repayment of bank borrowings ERRITER (32,735) (28,503)
Capital element of finance lease payment BEHEENRINERIL D (114) 51
Exercise of share options TR R 2 - 6277
Interest paid BERFE (1,277) (357)
Dividend paid ANLEE) (122,709) (140,000)
Amount due to non-controlling interests FE FEIE AR RE 2 TN TE 284 -
Net cash used in financing activities REEBMAR S FHE (112,131) (101,396)
D2 torva reporizors



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2015

HE2015F12A31BLFE
2015 2014
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Uk THER TAET
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents RERAELEEYRD (176,587) (25,059)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FONReRALEEY
the year 227,933 252,534
Exchange (loss)/gains on cash and RelkBaSEMEL
cash equivalents (B1R) Wz (1,088) 458
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ~ FARIFE RIREFEY 50,258 227,933
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERREEBUIN
Cash at bank and on hand BITRFERSE 13 51,029 228,808
Bank overdraft RITEX 21 (771) (875)
50,258 227933
The notes on pages 54 to 165 are an integral part of these consolidated financial E5aT | 6SE RIS AR S ARBRENE
statements. PREBS
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GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands on 28 June 2011 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is 3rd Floor, Queensgate House,
['13 South Church Street, PO. Box 10240, Grand Cayman, KY1-1002 Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group") are principally engaged in the provision of air freight service in the
wholesale market.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$)
unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board
of Directors on 29 March 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied

to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial
assets, which are carried at fair value.

(a)  Going Concern Basis

During the vear ended 31 December 2015, the Group incurred a
net loss of approximately HK$38,834,000 and had net operating
cash outflows of approximately HK$65,213,000. As at the same date,
the Group's cash and cash equivalents reduced from approximately
HK$228,808,000 to approximately HK$51,029,000.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

@)

Going Concern Basis (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had total banking facilities
of approximately HK$136,588,000, of which approximately
HK$25,148,000 bank borrowings were drawn down and
approximately HK$3 1,665,000 bank guarantees were utilised as at the
same date. Bank guarantees are required by airlines and integrated
carriers to allow the Group to secure cargo space and to operate
under the terms and conditions as agreed with airlines and integrated
carriers. The Group's bank loans and bank guarantees are pledged by
bank deposits of approximately HK$6,388,000 and key man insurance
policies which are classified as available-for-sale financial assets with
a total carrying value of approximately HK$13,605000 as at 31
December 2015 (Note 9).

2 EESHEREE (&)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

@)

Going Concern Basis (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group failed to comply with certain
restrictive financial covenant requirements of the banking facilities
offered by a bank. The total banking facilities from the relevant bank
were approximately HK$120,200,000, of which approximately
HK$16,893,000 bank borrowings and approximately HK$25,696,000
bank guarantees had been drawn down and utilised as at 3|
December 2015 (Note 21). In March 2016, the relevant bank has
renewed the banking facilities granted to the Group and reduced
the total facilities to HK$47,000,000 until 31 May 2016 and further
reduced to HK$26,000,000 from | June 2016 onwards. In addition, the
invoice finance facility will be terminated on 31 May 2016 such that
the bank borrowings of HK$16,893,000 will be due for repayment
then. Certain restrictive financial covenant requirements were also
revised. As at the date of approval of the consolidated financial
statements, the Group is in compliance with the restrictive financial
covenant requirements under the renewed banking facilities. These

banking facilities are subject to renewal by 15 June 2016.

On 9 March 2016, the Group entered into a memorandum of
understanding with a third party for a non binding proposed
acquisition of certain equity interests in a target company at a
preliminary consideration of RMB22 million (Note 38). Additional
funding will be needed should the Group proceed with this proposed

acquisition.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

@

Going Concern Basis (Cont'd)

In view of these circumstances, the directors of the Company have
given due and careful consideration to the liquidity of the Group and
its available sources of financing in assessing whether the Group will
have sufficient financial resources to fulfill its financial obligations and
continue as a going concern. A number of measures have been put in
place by the directors to improve the financial position and alleviate
the liquidity pressure, including:

() In February 2016, the Company completed the issuance of
30,370,000 ordinary shares to a third party and raised net
proceeds of approximately HK$ 19,700,000 (Note 38).

(i) Hollyview International Limited (“Hollyview), a shareholder
of the Company, granted to the Group a facility amount of
HK$30,000,000 (the “Hollyview Facility"). As at 31 December
2015, the amount utilized and payable to Hollyview by
the Group was HK$15,000,000. In addition, Hollyview also
granted a loan (the “Hollyview Loan") in the amount of
HK$5,000,000 to the Group which has been drawn down as
at 31 December 2015 (Note 19). In March 2016, a further
sum of HK$ 15,000,000 was drawn down by the Group under
the Hollyview Facility to provide additional working capital
to the Group. In addition, Hollyview has also agreed with the
Group in March 2016 that it will not demand repayment
before 24 November 2017, the facility termination date, of any
amount drawn under the Hollyview Facility and not to demand
repayment of the Hollyview Loan before 10 November 2017,
the loan maturity date (Note 38).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

@)

Going Concern Basis (Cont'd)

(iii)

In order to strengthen the equity based of the Group, the
Group acquired certain investment properties through
acquiring the entire equity interest in Nobletree Limited
(“Nobletree”) by the allotment and issuance of 131,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company on 18 December 2015 (Note
[4). The fair value of the investment properties amounted to
HK$87,000,000 as at 31 December 2015.

Apart from the banking facilities that were breached as at
year end, the Group has also breached certain covenant
requirements of another banking facilities of HK$10,000,000
during the year. As a result of management's effort in mitigating
the default and its continuous discussion with the relevant bank,
management has successfully negotiated with the relevant bank
for revised bank facilities in December 2015. Such bank facilities
are subject to renewal. The management maintains continuous
communication with the relevant bank and the directors are of
the opinion that such banking facilities will be renewed when
they expire in October 2016 such that they will continue to be
available to the Group for the next 12 months from the date of

the balance sheet.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(a)  Going Concern Basis (Cont'd)

V)

(vi)

In relation to the banking facilities of HK$120,200,000 for which
certain covenant requirements have been breached, the Group
has successfully renewed the banking facilities at revised terms
in March 2016 (Note 38). As at the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements, the Group is in compliance
with the restrictive financial covenant requirements under the

renewed banking facilities.

In view of the challenging market conditions for the air
cargo industry, management is implementing further cost
control measures such as reducing headcounts and operating
overheads, as well as minimizing non-revenue driven

expenditures in order to reduce operating cash outflows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

@)

Going Concern Basis (Cont'd)

(vii)  The directors of the Company have assessed the available
sources of financing and funding for the Group and considered
that the Group's investment properties and available-
for-sale financial assets amounted to HK$87,000,000 and
HK$ 13,605,000, respectively as at 31 December 2015 could be

pledged or realised to provide additional financial resources for

the Group when needed.

The directors of the Company have reviewed the Group's cash
flow projections which cover a period of twelve months from
31 December 2015. The directors are of the opinion that, taking
into account the Group's operating performance, existing financial
resources, available banking facilities and the additional financing to be
obtained as and when needed, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to meet its financial obligations as and when they fall due within
the next twelve months from 31 December 2015. Accordingly, the
directors are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated

financial statements on a going concern basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b)  Amended standards adopted by the Group
The following amended standards have been adopted by the Group

for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after | January

2015 and none of them has material impact on the Group:

2 EESHEREE (&)
2l RREE(H)

()

FEERN NG ER

A TEETEIERAE
BR20I5FIAIB 2%
EECEE N G ER= N

ERfEUAEEELER
HKAS 19 (Amendment) Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contribution
BREGFERE 9% (BFTX) EREME - EEHX
HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle
BB BHRERR (BFTA) BB BT E ZR20102202FBHFESE
HKFRSs (Amendment) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 — 2013 Cycle
BERMBHREER (BFTA) BEMEREER0 1 Z203F BHEEL0E

In addition, the disclosure requirements of the revised Listing Rules
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited came into effect from
31 December 2015. Amongst these, the Listing Rules require financial
statements to comply with Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of the new
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. disclosure 622) and its
supporting Regulations that came into operation during the financial
year, as a result, there are changes to presentation and disclosures of

certain information in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M RRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(©

New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Group

Up to the date of issue of this report, the HKICPA has issued the
following new and amended standards and which are relevant to the
Group's operations but are not yet effective for the annual accounting

period beginning on | January 2015 and which have not been early

adopted by the Group:

HKAS | (Amendment)
BERGTENE IR (BFTK)
HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 (Amendment)

ER e ERF IR RE B G ERE385E (BFTA)
HKAS 27 (Amendment)

BERBGIERFER (BETX)

HKFRS 9

BEAMBHRE LA FIR

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BERMBREEANE 0% REEGTEAFE28%
(EFTA)

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 (Amendment)

BEAMBHRE LT 0% BEMBEHREERE 125
RERBGTERIELE (BFTAK)

HKFRS 11 (Amendment)

BEEMBRELERE 15K (BFTAX)

HKFRS 14
BB IEREERFE 1455
HKFRS 15

BERMBRELERNF 55
HKFRSs (Amendment)
BEMBRELL (BITK)
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ERMIA
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Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception ()
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1

22

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(¢)  New and amended standards not yet adopted by the Group
(Cont’d)

O Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on | January 2016.

@ Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on | January 2018.

& Effective date to be determined.

The Group has completed an assessment of the impact of the above
new and amended standards that became effective since | January
2016 and in the process of assessing the impact of others and
considers that they will not have any significant impact on the results
of the Group's operations and financial position. The Group plans to
adopt the above new and amended standards when they become
effective.

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entries (including structured entities) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed
to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group.They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.2 Consolidation (Cont’d)

@)

Subsidiaries

(0

Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of
the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The Group
recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in
the event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are measured
at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value
at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising from such
remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(a)  Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

()

Business combinations (Cont d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. VWWhen necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the Group's accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)

@)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change
of contro/

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that
is, as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals
to non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value at the date when
control is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition,
any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

22

23

Consolidation (Cont'd)

(b)  Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of

dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net assets including

goodwill.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is
initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased
to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the
date of acquisition. The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill

identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence
is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

2

Bt 75 R AR B

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

23

Associates (Cont 'd)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in profit
or loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive
income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding
adjustment to the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the
Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the
amount adjacent to ‘share of profit of investments accounted for using equity

method' in the statement of comprehensive income.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with

the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in

profit or loss.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

24

25

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Executive

Directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)  Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in HK$, which is

the Company's functional and the Group's presentation currency.

(b)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income within “other losses, net”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5  Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

(©

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

. income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive

income are translated at average exchange rates; and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other

comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in other comprehensive income.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 FESHEEHE ()
2.5  Foreign currency translation (Cont'd) 25 HNEBRE (F)
(d)  Disposal of forejgn operation and partial disposal (@ HEBBIEBRIFTHE

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are re-
attributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the Group's
ownership interest in associates or jointly controlled entities that do
not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint control)
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange difference is

reclassified to profit or loss.

HEBINER (AHEXRE
BRI 2R -
g REEH-—HBEE
SN TS BB B X ) A 422
BOHE  FRREH—H
BN ES Y H R R
ERNARZHIENOLE
P RRELH -HEREE
SNFEBHEERRNER
TENNHE)R ARF
BaRFBEARERZES
REZARFTHOAAER
ERENNBERRR

ERTEBHASEELRE
ﬁ e B0 45 8 H 3 7 1 T
ARG SRS
D'AﬁER%ﬁmmW
HeENMBEIFTRES
MAERIBEERNHER 5t
FEEMEBS HE (BASE
BN NG P Ekat ]
ERMEREERRNOE
TEEHAERLEEX
FENKERES)ME
ZEEREZBHLHIHE
AlEFHBEERER-

BEYREZERERA A
—E-LFER

71



/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2

Bt 75 R AR B

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

26

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the

acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged

to profit or loss during the years in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
costs to their residual value over their estimated useful life. The annual rates

are as follows:

Leasehold improvements 25%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount and are recognised within “Other losses, net”, in

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

27

28

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising land and buildings, are held
for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that is
not occupied by the Group. The Group adopts the alternative treatment
by using the cost model provided under the HKAS 40 “Investment
Property”. Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs and where applicable borrowing costs. After
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost includes

expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Depreciation of investment properties is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual values over their estimated

useful lives of 37 years.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated

recoverable amount.

Intangible assets

(a)  Gooadwill
Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the excess
of the consideration transferred over the Group's interest in net fair

value of the net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of

the acquiree.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8 Intangible assets (Cont'd)

@)

®)

Gooawill (Cont’d)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating units
("CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential
impairment. The carrying value of goodwill is compared to the
recoverable amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs to sell. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an

expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software

Computer software with definite useful lives and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate costs of other

intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd) 2 FESHEEHE ()

29

2.10

Impairment of non-financial assets 29

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible

reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets 2.10

(a)  Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management

determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

FEREERE

EREHTRENEESTH
o ESFETRENR B8
EHABRESBRREEIT
AIE Rl SR T RIHNEE
fEHRER BEREESH
HAllem & Br0 28 R AR
EEE-AREEEAEEAL
BEREEXAREREERE
B ®E - BAHERENS  BE
RAOHBMNRERE (ReE
HEBAL) ENRERR DA - fWIE
TREE (BERN) LFAE
flgnsRmEBRAERER

TR -

TREE

(a #HE

AEEMEREERER
FEBFERAHREES
BEE -NRIRBAZRE
BEZBWEID -EEER
BREREETTREAE

KD 8

BEMREZERERA A
—E-LFER

75



/

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10 Financial assets (Cont'd)

@)

Classification (Cont'd)

(0

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for
the amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more
than |12 months after the end of the reporting period. These are

classified as non-current assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of it

within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(®)

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
the trade-date — the date on which the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised

cost using the effective interest method.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity. When securities classified as
available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustment recognised in equity is included in the statement of

comprehensive income as “Other losses, net”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective
interest method is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income as part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
as part of other income when the Group's right to receive payments is

established.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Impairment of financial assets

@)

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial
assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a resuft of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be

reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where
observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

211

Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)

(a)  Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont'd)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in profit or loss. If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis

of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the

previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1l Impairment of financial assets (Cont d)
(b)  Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial

assets is impaired.

For debt securities, if any such evidence exists the cumulative loss
— measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity and
recognised in profit or loss. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value
of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income.

For equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair
value of the security below its cost is also evidence that the assets are
impaired. If any such evidence exists the cumulative loss — measured as
the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised
in profit or loss — is removed from equity and recognised in profit
or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income on equity instruments are not reversed

through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12

213

2.14

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for services performed in
the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade and other receivables is
expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as

non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits held at call
with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities

of three months or less and bank overdrafts, net of pledged deposits. Bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in

equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Bt 75 R AR B

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.15 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for services that have been
acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables
are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less

(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are

presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the

redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the other

financial liabilities using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an

unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months

after the balance sheet date.

2.17 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are changed to profit or loss in the period in which they are

incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case,
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

(a)  Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company; its subsidiaries and an associated
company operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts

expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Cont d)

®)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax
is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

TESHBRUE (&)
218 EYRELEREH (#F)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d) 2

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Cont d)

(b)  Deferred income tax (Cont'd) (b) EBEFEH (&)
Outside basis differences SR EEE

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint arrangements, except for deferred income tax liability where the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by
the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to
control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only
when there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability
to control the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable
future, deferred tax liability in relation to taxable temporary
differences arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is not

recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries and associated
company only to the extent that it is probable the temporary
difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit

available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Cont d)

(©

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an

intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.19 Employee benefits

@)

Pension obljgations

The Group participates in a number of defined contribution plans, the
assets of which are generally held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The pension plans are generally funded by payments from
employees and by the relevant group companies. A defined
contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays
fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contribution if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods. The Group has no

further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is

available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.19 Employee benefits (Cont'd)

(b)  Profit-sharing and bonus plans

©

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses and
profit-sharing, based on a formula that takes into consideration
the profit attributable to the Company's shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a

constructive obligation.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave as a result

of services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not

recognised until the time of leave.

2 FESHBEME(F)
219 EEREA (&)

()

©

BRZER AL E

AEBZAREETHAE
1& 2K B B SR A8 ) A B
RIFTE A R 7o
FRANAERAX A&
EREaNEERBEE
PlE ELHEE B ERER
B

ESEZREA

EENEZFFRERER
BEREDNES TEEE
R -ARERBEFER
IHEEBBRREHERBEER
FRERBRBERANG
ATRERERE-

BEERERBERDBRY
R0 SR 7 AT RERR -

BEMREZERERA A
—E-LFER

87



8
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.20 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based compensation plan, under
which the entity receives services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense.

The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair

value of the options granted:

(@)  including any market performance conditions (for example, an entity's

share price);

(b)  excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and

remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

() including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the

requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is

recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the

specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value is estimated

for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between

service commencement period and grant date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)
220 Share-based payments (Cont'd)

221

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont'd)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment

to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are

credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and
employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations

may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
from provision of services in the ordinary course of the Group's activities.
Revenue is shown, net of returns, rebates and discounts and is recognised as

follows:

(a)  Air freight service fee income
Air freight service fee income is recognised when the air freight
services are provided, the timing of which usually coincides with the
departure date. This service fee income will be either recognised at

gross or net. The principal or agent relationships is determined by the

arrangement with airlines, integrated carriers and freight forwarders.

(b)  Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is

established.
(c)  Service income

Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont’d)

223

224

Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessors are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessors) are

charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Leases of property,
plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised at the lease's commencement at the lower of the fair value of the

leased property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges
so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in
current or non-current liabilities. The interest element of the finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is

depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and the lease term.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to shareholders of the entities is recognised as a liability
in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are

approved by the shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Directors of
the Company. The Directors provide principles for overall risk management,

as well as policies covering specific areas.

(a)  Market risk

(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with respect to Renminbi
(“RMB") and United States dollar (“USD"). Foreign exchange
risk arises from future commercial transactions, recognised

assets and liabilities.

During the year, the Group had not hedged its foreign exchange
risk because the exposure, of assets and liabilities subject to

foreign exchange risk, is not significant.

As HKS is pegged to USD, the Group considers that the foreign
exchange risk arising from transactions, recognised assets and

liabilities denominated in USD is not significant.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(a)  Market risk (Cont’d)

(0

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (Cont d)

The exposure to foreign exchange risk arising from transactions
in other currencies is minimal since those transactions or
recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency
that is the entity’s functional currency.

As at 31 December 2015, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against the HK$ with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss (2014 post-tax profit) for the year would
have been approximately HK$631,260 higher/lower (2014:
HK$430,860 lower/higher) mainly as a result of foreign
exchange losses/gains on translation of RMB-denominated
trade and other payables, offset by trade and other receivables
and cash and cash equivalents. The effect on equity would be
approximately HK$63 1,260 (2014: HK$430,860) lower/higher:

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, if the interest rate on
borrowings had been 100 basis points higher/lower than the
prevailing interest rate, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax loss (2014: post-tax profit) for the year would
have been HK$204,000 higher/lower (2014: HK$281,000
lower/higher). The effect on equity would be approximately
HK$204,000 (2014: HK$281,000) lower/higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont d)

®)

Credit risk

Credit risk mainly arises from deposits placed with banks and financial
institutions as well as credit exposures to customers, including
outstanding receivables and committed transactions. The Group has no

significant concentration of credit risk.

For banks and financial institutions, only independent parties with high

credit rating are accepted.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are made
to customers with an appropriate credit history and the Group
performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The existing
debtors have no significant defaults in the past. The Group's historical
experience in collection of trade and other receivables falls within
the recorded allowances and the Directors are of the opinion that

adequate provision for uncollectible receivables has been made.

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables, deposits placed
with banks and financial institutions represent the Group's maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Management makes periodic assessments on the recoverability of
those receivables and deposits, and is of the opinion that adequate

provision for receivables with significant credit risk has been made.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(©

Liquidity risk

The liquidity risk of the Group is controlled by maintaining sufficient

cash and cash equivalents, which is generated from the operating cash

flow and adequate banking facilities.

The table below analyses the Group's financial liabilities into relevant

maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet

date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the

table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within

I2 months equal their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is

not significant.

3 HRRRER(F)
3.1 H¥EBEZR(F)

(©)

HEE T /m AR

REBEBERSTHHR
BREREMENREE R
ReFBYMARERNIR
TREZHRBE SRR

TREIIREHEERR
FAEANE SR OF R
R A& E AR BB
HERBENDH - TREK
BENSBERAKNEMERR
ERE - HNANTEL
TEX 12EANE A
FRENERRE AR

At 31 December 2015
R20I15F 128318

Less than Between Between
| year I to 2 years 2to 5 years Total
IFR 1225 1855 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEn TR TR
Trade payables BHENTE 66,063 - - 66,063
Other payables and accruals A ENUEREER 11,239 - - 11,239
Finance lease lizbilities HERERRE n 67 - 139
Loans from a shareholder RRER 20492 - - 20492

Amount due to non-cortrolling  FE{T IR AR T
interests 284 - - 284
Borrowings fE5% 26,086 - - 26,086
124,236 67 - 124,303
BEYMRERBRA A

—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(¢c)  Liguidity risk (Cont’d)

3

MRRRERE (&)
3.0 HBERER(H)

(c) HmBELERE (&)

At 31 December 2014
M014F12A31B

Less than Between Between
| year [ t0 2 years 2105 years Total
IR |22 1E5F @5t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TR THET TR T
Trade payables BHRMANE 167473 - - 167473
Other payables and accruals HEENFIBRESER 2,671 - - 26671
Dividend payable R E 121,029 - - 121,029
Finance lease liailties REHEAR 84 84 100 268
Borrowings fE 33763 - - 33763
349,020 84 100 349,204

As explained in Note 2.1(a) to the consolidated financial statements,
the Group has failed to comply with certain restrictive financial

covenant requirements of the banking facilities offered by a bank

as at 31 December 2015. The breach of the restrictive financial

covenant requirements constitutes an event of default in accordance

with the bank facility arrangements, which may cause the relevant
banking facilities of HK$120,200,000 (2014: HK$173,600,000) be
voided, cancelled, terminated, reduced or not renewed, such that the
existing bank guarantees of HK$25,696,000 (2014: HK$58,513,000)
might be terminated any time, and these banks might also request

for immediate repayment of the outstanding borrowings of
HK$16,893,000 (2014: HK$24,674,000). Bank guarantees are required
by airlines and integrated carriers to allow the Group to secure cargo

space and to operate under the terms and conditions as agreed with

airlines and integrated carriers (Note 36). Without these banking

facilities, additional funding and working capital will be required by

the Group to fulfil the bank guarantee requirements of the airlines

and integrated carriers and to continue its air freight business without

significant curtailment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3 BIBREREE (&)
3.2 Capital risk management 32 BEXERERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s rEE E!'\J ﬁzli”:fi BEEERE
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for AEERBELE UAKRRE
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal a3l iﬁ&/ﬁj/ﬁ\@% w R A ARt
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. Mg FSESRENERES
PURIE B AR -
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the REFIRABERNER ~&E
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or AREgRBERN TRENRS S
sell assets to reduce debt. B mRREROER JHEEE
PAR D &7 o
The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total liabilities-to-total assets AEERREABHAEEENT
ratio. The total liabilities-to-total assets ratio as at 3| December 2015 and REEE R 2 R20155F R20145F
2014 were as follows: AR BAGEHRAENL
= Uy
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Total liabilities BRR 135,765 369,542
Total assets mEE 247,123 429,087
Ratio t & 55% 86%




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.3 Fair value estimation

3 HRRRER(F)
33 DAAEEME

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value by TRANBREEDTEANEE

valuation method. AR B IA-

The different levels have been defined as follows: TRERHNERINT:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or . HRAEERBEEERT
liabilities (level 1). BERE (REHAR) (5

IE) -

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are . BRTEIEMBENRE
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or Iy ZEEIBBENAER
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2). WA AREE (AER)

HEE (AREER) (%
2E) -

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable . BENBELIFKREAE
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3). RmingEnmA (B3R

BEAA) (F38)-

The following table represents the Group's financial assets that are measured TREVAREER20155F 12431

at fair value at 31 December 2015.

AREANEEFENEREE-

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
Level 3 HIE
Key management insurance classified NEAIHNESREEL
as available-for-sale financial assets EEERERR 13,605 15,653
13,605 15,653

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

Fair value estimation (Cont'd)

3

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement of

the Group's key management insurance contracts are credit rating, ages of

life insured persons and the discount rate. Significant increase/(decrease)

in crediting rating in isolation would result in a significantly higher/(lower)

fair value measurement. While significant increase/(decrease) in other

unobservable inputs in isolation would result in a significantly (lower)/higher

fair value measurement,

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year

mE MR

PHERERE (&)

DREEMSET (F)

AEEEREEERRAONA
REEFEMAERTIRES
ABEEFR ASZRAFRK
B RE-FEFREBEEE
i/ OB BB AR EER
EREEM,/ CRD) - Efp R
BERAEEBEEEM (R
D) AeBHRABEABEE
W) /g0

TR E 220155 2014512

ended 31 December 2015 and 2014; A3IBLEEEF=EIAZE
) :
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
Beginning of the year F4) 15,653 -
Additions NE - 16,415
Fair value loss DAEBEEE (2,048) (762)
End of the year (Note 9) ER (HF9) 13,605 15,653
Changes in unrealized losses for the year REEFAFRNEMEE TR
included in other comprehensive BlEZABEEBEZE)
income or loss at the end of the year 2,048 762
BEYREZERERA R

—E-LFER
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10

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements often requires the use of judgement to

select specific accounting methods and policies from several acceptable alternatives.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year are discussed below.
(a)  Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered any impairment, in
accordance with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.8. The recoverable
amounts of cash-generating units have been determined based on value-in-

use calculations. These calculations required the use of estimates (Note 6).

(b)  Impairment of other non-financial assets

Other non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets, investment properties and investment in a subsidiary are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the related carrying amounts may not be recoverable. Determining
whether impairment has occurred typically requires various estimates and
assumptions, including determining which cash flows are directly related to
the potentially impaired asset, the useful life over which cash flows will occur,
their amount, and the asset’s residual value, if any. In turn, measurement of
an impairment loss requires a determination of recoverable amount, which
is based on the best information available. To determine recoverable amount,
the Group uses cash flow estimates discounted at an appropriate discount
rate, quoted market prices when available and independent appraisals, as

appropriate.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

EREFHEFRER
REMBHRBERERAE AT
ARRAERTERRENG AR
B

fhat kA DR ERESR R EMRE
TR ERHERBERTREES
ERRREFNERE-

AREEE AR ERT RBRR - FIFH
QAT LNATRRI S EAHER
BRAT R MEYHFREERRR
SEYEENABRAEBRFEAHE
ERPEE G E N

@ FBBREEME

AR & BIAR 13 MY £ 2.8PT 3 & AT IR
R BFRAUBEED LBER
BE-REELEM A QKRS
RREMEEET YNETLE
AETRE A A (HfEe)

b) HttFE&MEERE

EEHBRERBERE DB
REESR TR AEE
EHERVE BELRE B
MEAE REMEARR —REH
BRAIZEEBHENNEM ISR
BERE-BETEARE—KR
AFLEEGAERR BRE
TEEREBEREEEABNR
ERE BELENRESRENT
ERFEH FHEBRRZEER
KErEE(MA) At 526
EERABEAKROEE BF
SRIOBRBEAGREEHET -
RETAKREOSHE ~EEER
REEFRENANREREMR
At AIEMSIRENRELGE (1
B -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (Cont'd)

(©

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables, based on an
assessment of the recoverability of the receivables. Provisions are applied
to receivables where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectable. The identification of impairment
of receivables requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectations are different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment
of receivable is recognised in the year in which such estimates have been

changed.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated taxes based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
would impact the current income tax and deferred income tax provisions in

the period in which such determination is made.

Estimation of fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

Where the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques that
include unobservable inputs. Changes in assumptions about these inputs
could affect the fair value measurement of the available-for-sale financial

assets.
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MEEORERBERE RN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

S A =
REMBRRME
5  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT M- BERRE
Leasehold Furniture and Office Computer Motor
improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE%E  HARRE LN EhEE nE st
HK$ 000 HK000 HK000 HK$000 HK$000 HK000
Tin T T TR TR TR
At | January 2014 RW0I4EIRIR
Cost B 3005 n | 464 4033 6264 15739
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (1887) (475) ©27) (153) (3413) (8555)
Net book amount RREE 118 29 837 2,080 2851 7184
Year ended 3| December 2014 BENM4ENRIBLEE
Opening net book amount EMREFE 118 2% 837 2080 2851 7184
Acquisition of subsidary WEHBAR - 38 - 9 - 47
Addtions HE 186 1497 179 884 4990 73%
Disposals (Note 32(b) HE (HEEp) - - 0l ) (1140) (1199)
Exchange diference EizE (20) (101) ® (14 ) (149)
Depreciation (Note 25) & (Ws) (561) (38) (250) (831) (13%) (3361)
Impairment (Note 24) W (FE4) - (1061) - - - (1061)
Closing net book amount EREEFE m 285 77 2,104 5363 9,202
At 3| December 2014 R0I4E12A3IR
Cost A 3167 2091 1543 5082 7699 19682
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  BzHTE R (2444) (1908) (816) (2978) (2336) (10,480)
Net book amount RERE m 285 7 2104 5363 902

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B HRME
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd) 5 UE -BRERSEE)
Leasehold ~ Furniture and Office Computer Motor
improvements fixtures equipment equipment vehicles Total
BE%E  GARKE BORR EERR g @t

HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
TER TER TER TEn TER TEn

Year ended 3| December 2015 BENISENRIALERE

Opening net book amount FORAFE m 285 n 2,104 5,363 9,202

Addtions RE 0l 14 13 3 2528 2807

Disposals (Note 32(b)) & (HE320) ) ) (182) (673) (102) (1,383)
Exchange difference EizE ) (57) (19) %) (1) (167)
Depreciation (Note 25) & (ki) (281) (113) (199) (739) (1,662) (299)
Impairment (Note 24) W (FE4) (I79) (9) (239) (284) (36) (829)
Closing net book amount EXERIE 2% 25 1o 397 6,079 6,637

At 31 December 2015 R0ISENA3IA

Cost A 889 1207 170 1,661 8471 12,408

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment ~~ REFTERE (863) (1,19) (60) (1,264) (239) (vl)

Net book amount REFE 26 25 110 397 6,079 6,637

Depreciation expenses for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 were BZE20155 R2014F 12 A3 HIEFER
charged in administrative expenses. FERX B RITHRAX

Impairment of property, plant and equipment for the vears ended 31 December B E20I15F R2014F12A3IBEEE
2015 and 2014 were recognised in "Other losses, net'. R BERZERECR [EME

B3 WER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

6

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

6 BFEE

Computer
Goodwill software Total
BE ERR4 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER T TEL
At | January 2014 R2014F 1818
Cost BEN 557 - 557
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R I KR E - - -
Net book amount REFE 557 - 557
Year ended 3| December 2014 BZEWM4FNANALEFE
Opening net book amount EREFE 557 - 557
Additions NE 630 2235 2865
Impairment charge (Note 24) RER (F524) (557) - (557)
Amortisation charge (Note 25) B R (MES) - (359) (359)
Closing net book amount FEREEFE 630 1876 2506
At 31 December 2014 R20145F12R31R
Cost A 1187 2235 3422
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 25T EHIORE (557) (359) (916)
Net book amount REFE 630 1876 2,506
Year ended 31 December 2015 BEWNISFENAIALEE
Opening net book amount EREFE 630 1,876 2,506
Impairment charge (Note 24) RERX (F524) (630) (1,429) (2,059)
Amortisation charge (Note 25) BER (F520) - (447) (447)
Closing net book amount FREEFE - - -
At 31 December 2015 R2015512A318
Cost DEN 1,187 2235 3422
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R I KR E (1,187) (2,235) (3422)
Net book amount REHE - - -

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

All amortisation expenses for the year ended 31 December 2015 were charged in

administrative expenses.

During the vear ended 3| December 2015, management considered there were

impairment indicators in relation to the computer software due to losses suffered

by the Group as a result of lower sales than previously forecasted.

After taking into account the expected operating environment and market

conditions, impairment of intangible assets amounted to HK$2,059,000 was

recognised in “Other losses, net”.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows:

mE MR

B EE (&)

HEWISFNAIBILEE FBEEE
B st ATTERR X

HEWSENAIBLEFEE BEER
A ARAEEREEBEN LT
eS8 MU B IS EUT L3R R E D
%0

K MFEREERERTIEMRE &
T & 2 R11E2,059,00058 70 2 A [ E At /85
B OFE|PRER.

HEAR

@) MEADHENT:

Particulars of

Place of Principal activities and registered capitall
Name incorporation place of operations issued share capital Interest held
B/
R A 1 R 33 56 TERBRERHE BRITRAFE BEER
2015 2014
Directly held:
EERA:
ASR Champion Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI") Investment holding USS| 100% 100%
RBRIES RARK Er
((RBRIES])
Sino Insight Investmentts Limited BVI Investment holding US$50,000 100% -
(note (i) RERUES REAR 50000% 7T
Sino Insight Investmentts Limited
(HHEG))
Swift Knight Limited (note (i) BVI Investment holding US$50,000 100% -
Swift Knight Limited ( B2 (i) ) EERAES REAR 50,000% 7T
Kenston Global Limited (note (ii)) BVI Investment holding US$50,000 100% -
Kenston Global Limited (fi{& (i) — EBRXES REAR 50,000% 7T
Fortune Moon Investments Limited ~ BVI Investment holding US$50,000 100% -
(note (i) RERUES REAR 50000% 7T

Fortune Moon Investments Limited

(P zE(i))

BEYREZERERA R

—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

7

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

@)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

7

MEAE (&)
@ MEARFEWT: (&)

Particulars of

Place of Principal activities and registered capital/
Name incorporation place of operations issued share capital Interest held
EmRE/
2R AE 1 R 3L 4 56 FTERBRERHE BRITRAFE BRER
2015 2014
Eagle Gorge Investments Limited BVI Investment holding US$50,000 100% -
(note (i) EERAES REZR 50,000% T
Eagle Gorge Investments Limited
(FzE(i))
Lucky Outset Investments Limited BVI Investment holding US$50,000 100% -
(note (i) EERAES REZR 50,000% T
Lucky Outset Investments Limited
(FzE(i))
Indirectly held:
BEEE:
ASR Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$2,000,000 100% 100%
0 REER 2000000/ 7T
AOE Freight (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$3,000,000 100% 100%
BEEEERAT ik in Hong Kong 300000087
BEEENRIER
ASR Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
BEMRERDT BE in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BEEENRIER
ASR Infrastructure Limited Hong Kong Inactive HK$10,000 100% 100%
0 EREX 10,0008 7T
ASR Europe Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 60% 60%
&R in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BEEENRIER
ASR Worldwide Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
R in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BEEENRIER
ASRCO Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
wNIRERA A o in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

7

MEATR (&)

@ MEARFEWT: (&)

Particulars of

Place of Principal activities and registered capital/
Name incorporation place of operations issued share capital Interest held
ARBRE/
2R AE 1 R 3L 4 56 FTERBRERHE BRITRAFE BRER
2015 2014
Star Pac Logistics Sdn. Bhd, Malaysia Air freight solution provider RM100,000 80% 80%
SRAEE in Hong Kong 51000007
BEEENRIER
Star Pacific Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
AEFEBNRERAT BE in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BEEENRIER
Pacific Empire Logistics Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
BRORERAT ik in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7
BEEENRIER
AOE Freight (Shenzhen) People’s Republic of China Alir freight solution provider RMB10,000,000 100% 100%
Limited (note (1)) ("PRC") in the PRC
BHEEREERE (FY) PEARANE TEZENREER  ARKI00000007
BRAR (M) (TR E])
Pacific Empire International PRC Air freight solution provider RMB7,500,000 100% 100%
Lirited (Shenzhen) (note (i)) i in the PRC AE#7,500,0007C
BEAEREERE (R PEEENRMERD
BRAR (M)
Bluestream Aviation Limited Hong Kong Alr freight solution provider HK$! 100% 100%
&R in Hong Kong BT
BEEENRIER
OA Cargo Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
R in Hong Kong 1,000,000 7T
BEEENRIER
OA Cargo (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$10,000 100% 100%
R in Hong Kong 10,0007 7T
BEEENRMUER
Pacific Empire (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$10,000 100% 100%
R in Hong Kong 10,0007 7T

BRTENRLER

BEYREZERERA R
—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

me

7

Bt 75 R AR B

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(@)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

7

MEATR (&)

@ MEARFEWT: (&)

Particulars of

Place of Principal activities and registered capital/
Name incorporation place of operations issued share capital Interest held
EmRE/
2R AE 1 R 3L 4 56 FTERBRERHE BRITRAFE BRER
2015 2014
Pacific Empire Cargo Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$10 100% 100%
R in Hong Kong 10T
BEEENRIER
Pacific Empire International Limited ~ Macau Air freight solution provider MOP100,000 100% 100%
KFAFRERARAF R in Macau 100,000 2P 7T
REEENRRER
Star Cargo (Taiwan) Limited Taiwan Alr freight solution provider NTD5,000,000 100% 100%
BEATEERMARRLAE Ak in Taiwan # 5 %5,0000007T
BETENRMERD
Star Cargo (Thailand) Limited Thailand Inactive BAHT3,000,000 100% 100%
R EEEX 3,000,005
Star Cargo Japan Limited Japan Air freight solution provider JPY350,000 100% 100%
Star Cargoff X, &4t B in Japan 3500008
AXZESRIUER
Pacific Well (HK)) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% 100%
B (&) BERRA ik in Hong Kong 1000007 7T
ERTENRUER
Oriental Way (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% 100%
RE(ER)BRRA ik in Hong Kong 1000007 7C
BEEENRMUER
ASR GSA Limited Hong Kong Inactive HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
0 EREX 1,000,007 7T
ASR (SE.Asia) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding HK$ 1,000,000 100% 100%
0 ALK 1,000,0007% 7T
ASR (SE.Asia) Pte Limited Singapore Alr freight solution provider SGD100,100 100% 100%
A% in Singapore 100, 10027 1% 7T

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

FREELRMHER



7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

(@)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

7

mE MR

MEAE (&)
@ MEARFEWT: (&)

Particulars of

Place of Principal activities and registered capital/
Name incorporation place of operations issued share capital Interest held
ARBRE/
2R AE 1 R 3L 4 56 FTERBRERHE BRITRAFE BRER
2015 2014
ASR Logistics SDN BHD Malaysia Inactive RM2 100% 100%
SRES gEEX SRt
ASR E-commerce Limited Hong Kong Air Freight solution provider HK$100,000 100% 100%
&R in Hong Kong 10,0007 7T
BEEENRIER
AOE India Freight Limited Hong Kong Air Freight solution provider HK$2 80% 80%
&R in Hong Kong VBT
ERTENRUER
ASR Europe OY Finland Air Freight solution provider EUR2,500 60% 60%
AH in Finland 2500817
AREETRUER
Star Cargo (Singapore) Ltd Singapore Air Freight solution provider SDN100 100% 100%
A% in Singapore 1007 & 7T
g zEE R RAER
OA Cargo Sdn. Bhd. Malaysia Air Freight solution provider RM2 100% 100%
SRAEE in Malaysia S
SRAGTEERREERS
AOE-TKW Logistics (India) Pvt Ltd ~ India Air freight solution provider INR 100,000 51% 51%
fE in India 10000050 B E L,
HEZENRMER
ASR GSA (Taiwan) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider NTD5,000,000 100% 100%
(note (v)) BE inTaiwan 318 %5,0000007C
BEBEMERERERR, BETENRMER
(P3EGv))
Star AOE Logistics (Cambodia) Cambodia Inactive Riels20,000,000 100% 100%
Limited (note (iv)) REFE gmex 20,000 0003 5 583
Star AOE Logistics (Cambodia)
Limited (P (iv) )

BEYREZERERA R
—E-LFER

109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

7 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(@)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

7 WEAR A

@ MEARFEWT: (&)

Particulars of

Place of Principal activities and registered capital/
Name incorporation place of operations issued share capital Interest held
EmRE/
2R AE 1 R 3L 4 56 FTERBRERHE BRITRAFE BRER
2015 2014
Star Cargo (Cambodia) Limited Cambodia Inactive Riels20,000,000 100% 100%
(note (iv)) REFE gmex 20,000 0003 5 583
Star Cargo (Cambodia) Limited
(P3EGv))
PT Pacific Empire Indonesia Indonesia Air freight solution provider  INR10,000,000,000 49% 49%
(note (iv)) Hfe in Indonesia 10,000,000,000% Lt (note (vi))
PT Pacific Empire Indonesia HRZERREER (B (i)
(P3EGv))
ASR Logistics Co Limited Vietnam Air freight solution provider ~ VND3,000,000,000 99% 99%
(Vietnam) (note (v)) i inVietnam 3000,000,00088 /&
ASR Logistics Co Limited (Vietnam) BEEERRLER
(M)
Wholetrans (HK) Limited Hong Kong Air freight solution provider HK$10,000 60% 60%
(note (iv)) BA in Hong Kong 10,0007 7T
Wholetrans (HK) Limited ( PifE (iv) ) BRTENRLER
Star Cargo Co, Limited Vietnam Inactive VND3,000,000,000 99% 99%
(Vietnam) (note (v)) #E gEex 3,000,000,00088 /&
Star Cargo Co, Limited (Vietnam)
(M)
Sino Sky Trend Limited (note (ii)) HK Inactive HK$10,000 100% -
hEXEBRAF (FE) BA TmEY 10,0007 7T

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)

@)

Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd)

7

MEATR (&)

@ MEARFEWT: (&)

Particulars of

Place of Principal activities and registered capital/
Name incorporation place of operations issued share capital Interest held
ARBRE/
2R AE 1 R 3L 4 56 FTERBRERHE BRITRAFE BRER
2015 2014
Beijing Sports Industry Group HK Inactive HK$10,000 100% -
Limited (note (i) R gmex 10,0007 7T
FRBEESEEARAT
(P&E (i)
Beijing Sports Media Holding HK Inactive HK$10,000 100% -
Limited (note (i) BB gmex 10,0007 7T
tREEERERBRAA
(P3E (i)
China Swimming Clubs Association ~ HK Inactive HK$10,000 100% -
Limited (note (i) BB gmex 10,0007 7T
PEEKEEDABBEERAA]
(FzE(i))
Beijing Sports And Entertainment HK Inactive HK$10,000 100% -
Industry Group Limited BB gmex 10,0007 7T
(note (ii))
IRBEREELEEAR
(P3E (i)
Nobletree Limited (note (iii)) HK Investment holding HK$10,000 100% -
Nobletree Limited ( Pt i) ) &R REAR 10,0007 7T
BEYREZERERA R

—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

7 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd)

(@)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont d)

Notes:

(

)

(vi)

These subsidiaries are limited liabilities companies incorporated in PRC.

These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year ended 31 December
2015.

These subsidiaries were acquired during the year ended 3| December 2015.

These subsidiaries were incorporated during the year ended 31 December
2014.

This subsidiary was acquired during the year ended 31 December 2014.

Although the Group owns not more than half of the equity interest in PT
Pacific Empire Indonesia, it is able to control more than one half of the voting
rights in respect of relevant activities by virtue of the fact that all directors are
elected by the Group, respectively. Consequently, the Group consolidates PT

Pacific Empire Indonesia.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for AOE-TKW

Logistics (India) Pvt Ltd and ASR Europe OY that has non-controlling

interests that are material to the Group.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BERRMEE
7  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 7 HEAR(E)

(@)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd) @ MEARFEWT: (&)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non- BEEAHZREZHNEL A
controlling interests (Cont d) HEBERIEE (&)
Summarised balance sheet EEEERHEE

AOE-TKW Logistics (India) Pvt Ltd ASR Europe OY
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TR TEL TiEn TER
Current okl
Assets EE 12,933 27,197 610 897
Liabilties afs (6930) 239) (1914) (9,124)
Pl etsesl(aive) | SREAR/(BEVEE o 03 _em)
Non-current assets FRBEE
Assets EE 2 38 - -
Liabiltes afs (1) 0) - (170)
Tot non-wrrent et et (bife)  AFAAE/ (REIFE 1 T S (70)
Net assets/(liabilties) &&/ (BE)FE 6,024 4841 (7,304) (8.397)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

7  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 7 HEAR(E)

(@)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd) @ MEARFEWT: (&)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non- BEEAHZREZHNEL A
controlling interests (Cont d) HEBERIEE (&)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZHBERBEE

AOE-TKW Logistics (India) Pvt Ltd ASR Europe OY
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FTER TARL TiEn TER
Revenue Wg 80,590 130984 7474 2999
Profit/(loss) before income tax BREEBATER/ (BR) 2,008 4795 4 (7929)
Income tax (expense)/credit FER (R%) /£ (403) (1376) 83 (79)
Post-tax income/(loss) from continuing HEREEKH R
operations and total comprehensive W/ (B8 Rk
ncomelloss) ______________. TEka/ (EReR | - ¥ 1% ______U4)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) DT HERERR
allocated to Non-Controlling Interests cEkE/ (BB g8 640 1985 47 (2968)
Dividends paid to Non-Controlling BX T HAERER MRS
Interests - - - -
1 1 ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE MR

7  SUBSIDIARIES (Cont'd) 7 HEAR(E)

WEARFROT: (&)

(@)  Details of the subsidiaries are as follows: (Cont'd) (a)

BEEAHZREZ B R A

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-

controlling interests (Cont d) HEBERIEE (&)
Summarised cash flows BeRENE

AOE-TKW Logistics (India) Pvt Ltd ASR Europe OY
2015 2014 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEL TiER TER
Cash flows from operating activities BEEBRENE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations & £MFE,/ (FTA) R 3763 (787) 712 (7078)
Tax paid F A (2.258) (2.357) 4) )
Net cash generated from/(used in) BEEDHE/ (FiA)
operating activities ReFE 1,505 (3144) 670 (7157)
Net cash (used in)/ generated from BEEY (FMR) /FB
financing activities Redd - - (127) 4373
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEDAHE/ (FF)
investing activities BeRE - - Ub)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReRREEEY
cash equivalents s/ (R) 38 1,505 (3.143) 543 (2895)
Cash, cash equivalents at BURERRLEED
beginning of period 1,391 4,600 (875) 1,340
Exchange losses on cash and ReRBReEENERER
cash equivalents (148) (66) 104 680
Cash and cash equivalents at BRAERRLEEY
end of period 2,748 1,391 (228) (875)

The information shown above was before inter-company eliminations.

B R A R A 5 AT A B

BEYREZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

8  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 8 REYXE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT

At cost model BRAEAGE
At | January RIAIA - -
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 34) Y iE— R EB 2 R) (KIaE34) 95,664 -
Capitalised subsequent expenditure HigRXBARE 963 -
Impairment (Note 24) RAE (PiEE24) (9,492) -
Depreciation (Note 25) & (MiEE25) (135) -
As 31 December R12A31H 87,000 -

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had no unprovided contractual obligations for

future repairs and maintenance (2014: Nil).

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was performed by

the valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited, and the fair value of the investment properties

was determined to be HK$87,000,000 as at 31 December 2015. The following

table analyses the fair value measurement of the investment properties by valuation

method.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

2015 128318 REBWEKREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

8  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd) 8 REWX (&)

Fair value measurements at 3| December 2015 using
ROISFIAIBU T AR BNAARE

Quoted prices in

active markets for  Significant other Significant
identical assets  observable inputs unobservable
(Level 1) (Level 2)  inputs (Level 3) Total

HREEE EENEMT  BINFY
ERTSNEE BERANE  BEEANE

Description it (E14k) (%28) (%3%) @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THEL TEL TET
Investment properties RENZE
— Office units - Hong Kong, held under “BRE-FE RRHRN
medium-term lease (between 10 to 50 years) (10250%) 8 - 87,000 - 87,000
- 87,000 - 87,000
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value AEEHR RN EHERNEMHBER
hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused HEHNBERAAABEERNBAR
the transfer. Yo
There were no transfers between Levels |,2 and 3 during the year. RAFEERN  F| 2RIME W EE -
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont’d)

Valuation processes of the Group

The Group's investment properties was valued at 31 December 2015 by
independent professionally qualified valuer who hold a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the locations and segments
of the investment properties valued. For all investment properties, their current use

equates to the highest and best use.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuation performed by the valuer
for financial reporting purpose. These valuation results are then reported to
the Group's management for discussions and review in relation to the valuation

processes and the reasonableness of valuation results.

At each financial year end the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

. Holds discussions with the independent valuer:

Valuation techniques

For Hong Kong office units, the valuation was determined using the sale comparison
approach. Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input into this

valuation approach is price per square foot.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

RENE (&)

EEENBER

R20I5F 128318 AEBRIREME
BB EEAEREEMGE  ZHE
MBERAMEEEEER AMEE
A Y H 0 B B IS B3 B AT 5R o BEAT
BREMENE BAIEAMRERRR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS AHHESREE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAET
Beginning of the year F17 15,653 -
Addition NE - 16415
Net loss transferred to other EREHMEERE CBEERE
comprehensive income (2,048) (762)
End of the year FR 13,605 15,653
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Key management insurance: FTEERERR:
Fair value of the insurance contracts, REBEHAAEBE"
denominated in US$ AZETTEHE 13,605 15,653

During the year ended 3| December 2014, the Group entered into key
management life insurance contracts to insure three of its key management
personnel. Under the contracts, the beneficiary and policy holder is ASR
Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the total insured sum is
approximately US$6,000,000 (equivalent to HK$46,800,000). The contracts will be
terminated on the occurrence of the earliest of the death of the key management
personnel insured or other terms pursuant to the contracts. Gross premium of a
total of US$2,104,399 (equivalent to HK$16,415,000) and a 6% premium charge
of US$126,263 (equivalent to HK$985,000) has been paid at inception. The Group
may request a surrender of the contracts at any time and receive cash back based
on the cash value at the date of withdrawal. A guaranteed interest rate of 4.2% per
annum applied to the contracts for the first five years, followed by the discretionary
portion with a minimum guaranteed interest rate of 2% per annum for the following
years until termination. The discretionary portion is subject to change with reference

to the credit rating.

HZE0I4FNA3NALFE RNEE®
(ZRFTZEBEBALRR FILE
EEBEEASREBEN -BREEH:
X ARRERB ARASR Limited (A
NRAIZEMBAT) MEBRERSELH
46,000,000 7T (18 % 7046,800,0007%8
) MAERRZEEEBEALIN
SHARE S K2 H A BRI TERE R (JA
REERE) BHBTURIE - BRE
2,104399% 7T (18 5 716,415,000 7T)
K 126,2633 7T, (48 %5 72985,000% 7T ) 2
HEEEABE NIRRT REER
AR Z SRR E ) R B B 23R
S EEKERE - EREF E42%E
RERFZEH BB FERNED
DM SRR EF RSB R T LA -
MEHD B2 EEERETUE

\]

BEYREZERERA R
—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

9  AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2015, the fair value of key management insurance contracts
are determined based on the cash value. The key management insurance is pledged
as collateral for the Group's bank borrowings and bank guarantees amounting to
approximately HK$16,893,000 (2014: HK$5,577,000) and HK$25,696,000 (2014:
HK$57,413,000) respectively (Note 21).

10 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as follows:

AHHESHEE (&)
RISFNAIR - T EEBERRA
NeAnBERACEEET -T2
ERERBEAREZHFTEERR
TTHER D BI416,893,000 7T (20144 :
5,577,000/ 7T ) %25,696,0007% 7T (2014
F : 57,413,000/ 7T ) R A E R i (P
F21)

ESEFREH

EEHBEEEREEHBEEES TN
N

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAT
Deferred income tax assets: RIEFEHEE:
Deferred income tax assets to be recovered HFA 1218 A LA1& U 2] /93 S
after more than 12 months s & E - 1,506
Deferred income tax liabilities: BIEFENEE:
Deferred income tax liabilities to be recovered AR 1218 A LAT& U 2] /93 3
after more than 12 months FistiasE (53) (822)
(53) 684

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

Deferred income taxes of the Group represent temporary differences under the
liability method using taxation rates enacted or substantively enacted by the balance

sheet date in the respective jurisdictions. The gross movements in deferred income

mE MR

IEEFRSH (&)

ARENETEHRERIREREAER
BA AR EEEACRARELDR
E I Rt B R 25 BIEPAS B

tax assets/(liabilities) during the years are as follows:

Withholding
tax relating
to unremitted

BE/ (AR RFANEZEBERN

T

Accelerated tax

earnings depreciation Tax losses Total
BRARER
BRGENK NBEHERE HEBR @t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
ThEL TAL TR TET
At | January 2014 R014E1 AR (1,182) (388) 641 (929)
Recognised in the consolidated statement of EFa2ARERTHER
comprehensive income (Note 29) (B329) 1,007 (593) 1199 1613
At 31 December 2014 #0145 124318 (175) (981) 1,840 684
Recognised in the consolidated statement of EFA2ANRRTER
comprehensive income (Note 29) (Fr£k29) 175 928 (1840) (737)
At 31 December 2015 20156124318 (53) - (53)

Withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China, in respect of earnings
generated after 31 December 2008.The Group's subsidiaries in Mainland China are
held by companies incorporated in Hong Kong and are subject to 10% withholding

tax.

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been recognised for the withholding tax
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries totalling
HK$1,300,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$979,000). Such amounts are

permanently reinvested.

FE R B At B 7 B 51 E 1B 5 3E20084F 12
A BURAREENBFRNRREES
KR EAHRIENH - ARERPEA
M H B A R BB MR AR
BAEWBHZI0%M BT -

2015128318 mAREAEBE TH
BArz REMBFEMHMMENH
& 3130000078 TTHRRIELEMERAE
(20145 : 979,000/ 7T ) © 7% = FRIALEK
ABEE-

BEYREZERERA R
—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

|0 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont'd)

Withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from foreign
investment enterprises established in Taiwan. The Group's subsidiary in Taiwan is held

by a company incorporated in Hong Kong and is subject to 20% withholding tax.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had not recognised deferred income

tax assets in respect of tax losses of approximately HK$83,319,000 (2014:

HK$43,022,000). Except for tax losses amounting to HK$51,841,000 (2014
HK$30,252,000) that can be carried forward indefinitely to offset against future
taxable income, the Group's remaining unrecognised tax losses will expire in the

following years:

IEEFRSH (&)

BEKIMIELERIRREES
KA B RGN - AREHEREN
ME QR BEREREMKILNARIFE
I R ZR20%E) FAHI TR ©

R2015F12A318  AEBE R ARFH
T8 55 18 483,319,000/ 7T (20144 :

43,022,000/ 70 ) BERIBEIE SR EE -

Bk 4 JE &5 1851,841,0007 7T (20144

30,252,000/ 7 ) 7] 4 B Ef 3t A2 88 R 4R 4K
HARRERTBAIN REEHRTAR
TR IEEBR R A TFEER:

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT THT

2015 - 60
2016 ) )
2017 3 32
2018 2,363 2363
2019 4,099 4099
2020 16,623 -
2021 - -
2022 1,29 -
2023 177 177
2024 6,506 5997
2025 340 -
31,478 12,770

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RENBRRME

TRADE RECEIVABLES I BZEWRE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET
Trade receivables H P REWGRIE 74,729 145,591
Less: allowance for impairment of trade receivables  J&i : B 5 UGB R B R (3,238) -
Trade receivables — net B RWHIE—FHE 71,491 145,59

The Group's sales are mainly made on (i) cash on delivery; or (i) credit terms of 30

to 60 days.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the aging analysis of trade receivables based on

invoice date was as follows:

AEBENHETEROENHK: K
(iN30ZE0RZEE

#1570

P20I5F R2014F 128318 BIERE
HEEL A E 5 B IEM BRI 2 AT 0

N
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
~ 01030 days 030K 39735 96,296
~ 31 t0 60 days _31ZE60K 21,678 30326
— 61 t0 90 days - 61E90K 7,540 10,854
— Over 90 days —90RA £ 5,776 8,115
74,729 145,591

BEYREZERERA R
—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR RHE

Il TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) Il EZRWREE)

R2015F 128318+ 4)/431,7560007% 7T
(2014%F : 76,793,000 70 ) KO & 5 UK
HEBMERRE ERSZRAVE
BRGSNBEIEP AR - REIEA
TEH %% B 5 R IE R BRI 2 1T 40

As at 31 December 2015, trade receivables of approximately HK$3 1,756,000 (2014:
HK$76,793,000) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing

analysis of these trade receivables based on due date was as follows:

N
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
— | to 30 days - 1230k 21,678 49,345
— 31 to 60 days -31E60K 7,540 16,708
— 61 t0 90 days - 61E90K 886 2,755
— Over 90 days —90RA £ 1,652 7,985
31,756 76,793

AEBEHRUGBNERREN TIE

The carrying amounts of the Group's trade receivables were denominated in the

following currencies: ®3IE:
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
- HK$ —BTT 50,729 60,34
- RMB - AR 8717 33,095
~ Indian Rupee —-HEE®L 6,690 24356
— Malaysia Ringgit (MYR) —-HRADLE (FRALLH) 1,226 16,260
-UsD —%7T 6,096 6,382
— Japanese Yen —H - 2,570
— Other currencies - HpE 1,271 2,587
74,729 145,59

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TRADE RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)

Movements on the Group's allowance for impairment of trade receivable are as

mE MR

BZRWRE (4F)
REBE HRWFORRERE 2 ZEH

follows: K
2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
TERT TET
At | January RIAIA - -
Provision for impairment of receivables (Note 25)  J& W R IR B B8 (P 5E25) 3,238 -
At 31 December RI2A31R 3238 -

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at the balance sheet date is the fair values

of the trade receivables. The Group did not hold any collateral as security.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts of trade receivables

approximated their fair values.

REERREGNRAEERRAESE
WFIBH AR EE A EE Y BFAE
AR ERER

2015 R0I4E 128318 B 5 EW
FUEREEEENEBERS-

BEYREZERERA R
—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

12 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The nature of prepayments, deposits and other receivables as at 31 December 2015

and 2014 was as follows:

FBHFIE  REREMEKRE
20154 20145128318 » FET K
B e FEMBERGENEENT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Prepayments B FIE 1,094 2,029
Deposits o 7,370 5,664
Other receivables HoAth fE e k1A 2,118 4,994
10,582 12,687
10,582 12,687

Less: non-current portion: W 3EREED D
Deposits Ee (299) (582)
Prepayments and other receivables A FRIE S E A e KRR IR (32) -
10,251 12,105

Note:

(@) Asat 3l December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts of other receivables, and

deposits approximated their fair values.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

e

(@  M20I5F KX2014F 128318 EfbfE
WREREENEEEEEAAEBE
1A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMEHRRMETE
PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Cont’d) 12 FENRE RERHMERTE(F)
The balance was denominated in the following currencies: AT G 5IE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
— HK$ —ATT 2,040 4,669
- RMB - AR¥ 1,589 1,905
- UsD £ 2,971 3116
— Other currencies —Hip g 3,982 2,997
10,582 12,687
PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 13 CEFER RERBELSEY
Group
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHET
Cashatbankandonbend RORFERE 51029 228808
Pledged cash at bank (note (a)) BEMRTHRS (HEE) 3,665 3,665
Pledged short-term bank deposits (note (3)) _____ BEMBMRGER (Wit@) - 2723 3302
Pledgeddepostts . BERGX ! 6388 6967 _
Total cash and bank balances Re RRITHESBEE 57,417 235,775

Note:

(@)  Asat 3l December 2015 and 2014, the amounts were pledged to bank, to secure

certain loans facilities of certain subsidiaries and guarantees provided to airline

suppliers (Note 21).

()  M20I5F K2014F 128318 ZEXK
EEBERTRIT (ERETHEAR
BETEFTRENRREETFRZERR
HER MR R (H5E21)

0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RHE

I3 PLEDGED DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Cont’d)

Total cash and bank balances were denominated in the following currencies:

BERENR RERREEEY (F)
Re MRTHESKEEATIERIIE:

Group

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TAT

- HK$ —BT 9,586 100,146
- RMB - AR 24,379 55,787
- MYR -BRERSTHE 570 43467
-UsD —%7 17,091 21,442
— Japanese Yen —H 174 4,079
— New Taiwan dollar —hek 1,238 3073
~INR —-HEEL 2,748 1,391
— Macau Patacas —BPTT 87 3,742
~ Euro —®T 21 446
— Other currencies —HiEH 1,523 2,202
57,417 235,775

Cash in bank earned interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposits rate. As
at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents

approximated their fair values.

As at 31 December 2015, the effective interest rates on pledged short-term
bank deposits were [.19% (2014: 1.2%) per annum, and these deposits have an

approximate average maturity of 7 days (2014: 58 days).

The Group's RMB balances are placed with banks in the PRC. RMB is not a freely
convertible currency. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies in the PRC is subject to rules and regulations of foreign exchange

control promulgated by the PRC government.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR A
14 SHARE CAPITAL 14  BE
Number of
shares Share capital
RO EE R
(thousands) HK$’000
(F&) TR
Authorised: EE
At | January 2014, 3|1 December 2014 and 2015 RA2014F1A18 20145 R
20155 12A31R 4,000,000 20,000
Number of
shares Share capital
ROBE N
(thousands) HK$’000
(FR) TR
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: ERTRAREER:
At | January 2014 #A2014E1 818 800,000 4,000
Exercise of share options TTERE R 2 6,860 34
At 3| December 2014 2014512831 H 806,860 4,034
Issuance of shares BITIRM 131,000 655
At 3| December 2015 20155128318 937,860 4,689

BEYREZERERA R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE

I5  RESERVES 15 f@#E
Available-
for-sale
Statutory financial ~ Share-based
Capital and legal assets payment
Share reserve  Exchange reserves  revaluation reserve Retained
premium  (Note (a)) reserves  (Note (b)) reserve  (Note(c))  Sub-total earnings Total
HRGA
EER  AHHE  EBY
ERGHE AERE  SREE NROEG
ROEE (WEe) EXRE (KWEe) E6RE  (KE) Mt REBRA a3t
HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$1000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$1000
TEL  TER  TExT  TAr  TEr  TER  TEnr  TER  TER
Balance at | January 2014 01451 A1 BRYE R 72565 5990 3594 2675 - 1519 86,343 2856 294869
Currency translation differences ERES - - 54 - - - 54 - 54
Fair value loss on available-forsale AEHESRHERES
financial assets DHBEEE - - - - (762) - (762) - (762)
Dividends & (27.247) - - - - - 2747)  (233782) (261029
Partial disposal of a subsidiary to HEBAME AT
non-controlling interest THhERER - (145) - - - - (145) - (145)
Exercise of share options TiRERIE 6243 - - - - - 6243 - 6243
Share-based payment SR BERANH - - - - - 939 939 - 939
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTETHRE - - - 195 - - 195 (195) -
Proft for the year ERgd - - - - - - - 13,17 13,17
Balance at 31 December 2014 014512831 BAEE 51,561 5845 3648 2870 (762) 2458 65,620 (12334) 53286
Currency translation differences EXER - - (1,043) - - - (1,043) - (1,043)
Fair value loss on available-for:sale RHESREEL
financial assets RABEEE - - - - (2,048) - (2,048) - (2,048)
Release upon cancellation of vested ERBRRETHOE
share options - - - - - (2,458) (2458) 2458 -
Acquistion of a subsidiary YE-ENELA 94,975 - - - - - 94975 - 94,975
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - - (d6l)  (062)
Balance at 31 December 2015 R0ISE 12831 BgsE 146,536 5,845 2,605 2870 (2810) - 155,046 (50488) 104,558

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RESERVES (Cont'd)

Notes

@)

Capital reserve

Capital reserve recorded during the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014

represented the gain/loss on equity transactions with non-controlling interests.

Statutory and legal reserves

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations, PRC companies are required to
allocate 10% of the companies' net profit to the fund until such fund reaches 50%
of the companies’ registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant authorities, to offset against accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is maintained at a

minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.

Subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan is required to set aside a minimum 0% of the
subsidiary's profit after taxation to the legal reserve, until the reserve balance has

reached the subsidiary's capital.

Subsidiary incorporated in Macao is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of the
subsidiary's profit after taxation to the legal reserve until the balance of the reserve
reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the subsidiary's capital in accordance with the
Macao Commercial Code #377.

Share-based payments

Share options are granted to selected employees. The exercise price of the granted
options is equal to the market price of the shares plus 0.55% on the date of the
grant. Options are conditional on the employee completing two years' service (the
vesting period). The options are exercisable starting two years from the grant date.
The options have a contractual option term of 3.5 years. The Group has no legal or

constructive obligation to repurchase or settle the options in cash.

e MR

it ()

Pt

(@)

(©

BEXGRE

HZE2015F R04ENRA3IR LEE
AEHE AR IE IR R i S H
BwR W BB

EEREGERE

RERETRBRERRER PEAR
ERATEMMNBIEEES &
EEMAESEQAREMERN %A
L rEREBEESERRERILER
ATEA UEERFEBRIENA
BAMELR HEHESREARS
TE A RIFE & A 225%K F

ReEFmR AL RARK B
RAEIBRTE 8 M B D 1 0% A& A
B EERBEHEINBRARNK
KA

BIERPIR AR 37716 RRFIER
Bz ROF B A RIS E R R R R
DBBEANBEHE EERELES
EREERERAES0%A LE

LR RERNAR
BRESETEIENERE -FRE

R ERTTRERR T R MR D
{ENN0.55%  BAER IR RERR
REmME (FEH) - BERERRE
R EEMEFRTTE - BRENS
KV ERRE AR /33.55F « N[ /A
(B 3% AT & A8 B A A 1O E S HE A
BfEe
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRHE

I5 RESERVES (Cont’d) 15
Notes (Contd)
(¢)  Share-based payments (Cont'd)
Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their related weighted
average exercise prices are as follows:
2015

Average

exercise price

it (&)
i aE (&)

© HUROBEBONR ()

AT RAERTEERERENEFR
HBBMEFTEE:

2014
Average

exercise price

in HK$ per Options in HKS per Options
share option (thousands) share option (thousands)

BFHBREN B BN
FHTRE RE  FHTRE i
(BAF8 TTRT) (F4)  (GAERED (+t)
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET TET
At | January RIAIR 0915 6,900 0915 15,960
Granted BEH - - - -
Cancelled [mE 0915 (6,900) 0915 (2,200)
Exercised BT - - 0915 (6,860)
At 31 December RI12A318 - - 0915 6900

All of the share options were cancelled on 8 April 2015 and HK$29,900 was paid to
the then share option holders.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e EmRMEE
TRADE PAYABLES Y AREINE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$000
FExT FET
Trade payables B ENRIE 66,063 167473

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the ageing analysis of trade payables based on

invoice date was as follows:

20154 201412831 B - 1B 15 3
BHERHE 5 A ZIBM BRI AT I

===

N

T
2015 2014
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FTET
0 to 30 days 0&30K 30,379 67,092
31 to 60 days 3IE60K 7,442 27,779
61 to 90 days 61 290K 2,572 12,650
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 448 10,311
Over 120 days 20K A £ 25,222 49,641
66,063 167473

BEYREZERERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RE M BRRME
6  TRADE PAYABLES (Cont’d) 6 BIEAREE)
The carrying amounts of the Group's trade payables were denominated in the AEEEHRNTIENREENTIIE
following currencies: ®3IME:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
— HKS —ABT 32,433 32,170
-UsD —%7T 25,491 65,929
~MYR —BROATHER 4 57,117
~RMB - AR#% 4831 8,765
— Other currencies —HtE® 3,304 3492
66,063 167473
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts of trade payables 20159 R2014F 12A31H B S5 EN
approximated their fair values. FENEREEEAABEES -
|7 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 17 HttENREREER
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Accruals &M 18,384 29,382
Deposits received Biizse 3,666 9,126
Other payables H b g 508 46 350
22,096 38,858
Notes: BT 3T -
(@) Asat 31 December 2015 and 2014, the carrying amounts of other payables and (@)  H20I5F K2014F 128318 M fE
accruals approximated their fair values. NREREFERNEEEREAR
BEMEE-

1 ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Cont’d) 17 HittEEARERETER (&)
The balance was denominated in the following currencies: AT G 5IE
Group
AEE
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
~HK$ —BT 4,485 13812
~RMB —AR% 13,188 18,124
— British Pound — g - 2626
— Euro —BT 1,331 1,624
— Other currencies —HitE% 3,092 2,672
22,096 38,858
AMOUNT DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 18 FEfIFERER KA
As at 31 December 2015, the amount was unsecured, interest-free and repayable R20I5F12A318 - BEEHELAER
on demand (2014: Nil). The carrying amount of amount due to non-controlling B2 ERBERZKREE (20145
interests approximated its fair values and was denominated in Hong Kong dollars. &) EAEERER TR REER
EARBEMELABTEHE.
19 RREX

LOANS FROM A SHAREHOLDER

As at 31 December 2015, the amounts were unsecured, interest bearing at 2.5%
per annum and repayable on demand (2014: Nil). The carrying amounts of loans
from a shareholder approximated their fair values and was denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the shareholder has agreed
not to demand repayment of HK$15,000,000 under the Hollyview Facility and
HK$5,000,000 under the Hollyview Loan before November 2017.

R20I5F12A318 EEFIBREE
e AE R R25%5T B RBREKE
EQ014F &) REERWEEER
HERAABEEABELANETTE - RE
EREXBHE REERER2017
F AR Z R E EHollyviewst & 18
15,000,0007% 7T & Hollyview& 518 T
5,000,000 77T °

BENRERER A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE

20  FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES 0 BEHEEAE
Lease liabilities are effectively secured as the rights to the leased assets would revert AR ETHEEENENBERLRED
to the lessor in the event of default. HHAA HHERRER LABEA-
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET
Gross finance lease liabilities MEMERFELESE
— minimum lease payments —HREHENK
No later than | year —F R 72 84
Later than | year and no later than 5 years —FAERFUR 67 184
139 268
Future finance charges ARBMEER (10) (25)
Present value of finance lease liabilities REMERENRE 129 243
The present value of finance lease liabilities REHEAENRENT
is as follows:
No later than | year —FUR 64 73
Later than | year and no later than 5 years —FUERFUR 65 170
129 243
The carrying amounts of the finance lease liabilities were denominated in Euro. MEREEENEREENBTEE-
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the amount was secured by a guarantee. 2015 R20I14F 128318 2S5 A
AEREER-

1 ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

BORROWINGS (=N

2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Bank overdraft RITEX 771 875
Bank borrowings RITIER 24,377 32,735
25,148 33,610

The Group had total banking facilities of approximately HK$136,588,000, of R20I5F12A318  REEHERT

which approximately HK$25,148,000 bank borrowings were drawn down and
approximately HK$31,665,000 bank guarantees were utilised as at 31 December
2015.

Pursuant to the terms set out in certain banking facilities granted to the Group, the

Group has to comply with certain restrictive financial covenants.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's banking facilities were secured by:

) An unlimited guarantee from the Company and its certain subsidiaries;

i) A guarantee from the Company to the extent of HK$10,000,000;

i) An unlimited guarantee from Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Mr. Mak Chi Hung and Mr. Law

Kai Lo, owners of ASR Victory Limited;

iv) A charge over bank deposits of Mr.Yu Ho Yuen, Mr. Mak Chi Hung and Mr
Law Kai Lo in the aggregate amount of not less than HK$10,000,000;

v) A charge over the Group's bank deposits in the amount of HK$6,388,000;

vi)  An assignment over the Group's key man insurance policies.

B0 & 4850 49136,588,000/8 7T B 4
25,148,000/ TLIR T R E IR B4
31,665000/8 TLERTTIEREMLEN A ©

BREXTAKRE AR TRITREMS

&R N EREST

e

BTG 1R AR

B0I5F1NA3IE AL ZFETHE

AATEEER:

—.

BREBER:

REXRAREETHELRRZ

i) ZREZARQRIFER0,000,0007 7T

iy HEASR Victory Limited A AR
EREE BEMAERBER
FHEZERBER

V)RR BT EREE

BREAHAN

L 10,000,00058 7T

RITERCER

v)  AREE63880008 TRITFERZ

B

v AEEEBAEBREZEZE-

BEYREZERERA A
—E-LFER
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e M RRHE

21

22

BORROWINGS (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2015, the Group breached the covenant requirements of
certain banking facilities offered by a bank. The facilities from the relevant bank
amounted to HK$120,200,000, of which approximately HK$16,893,000 bank
borrowings and approximately HK$25,696,000 bank guarantees (Note 36) had
been drawn down and utilised as at 31 December 2015. In March 2016, the relevant
bank has renewed the banking facilities granted to the Group, but reduced the total
facilities to HK$47,000,000 until 31 May 2016 which will be further reduced to
HK$26,000,000 from | June 2016 onwards. Certain restrictive financial covenant
requirements were also revised. In addition, the invoice finance facility from this bank
will be terminated on 31 May 2016 such that the outstanding bank borrowings of
HK$16,893,000 will be due for repayment then. As at the date of approval of the
consolidated financial statements, the Group is in compliance with the restrictive
financial covenant requirements under the renewed banking facilities. These banking
facilities an subject to renewal by |5 June 2016. Since the bank borrowings under
these facilities were due on demand, no reclassification or adjustment was necessary.

The balance was denominated in the following currencies:

21

& (&)

R20I5FNA3IR AEEER—E
RITREE TRITRE 2ZOHE -
KB EBHRITZEE /120200000
7T H A 416,893,000/ TT IR 1T 15 A R
#725,696,00078 TLIR 1T AR (H7E36) B
015 2A3IBEHERLEEA R
016538 EBRBETEEHRTAE
BoRTME HHRELERLE
47,000,000 7T - EE2016F5A318 5
1 W2016F6 B I BR#GE— D
226,000,000/ 7T ° & TR 6l 14 B & 2249
HREELE BT < bhoh KRB ZRITZ
BHEEBRN0I6ESB3IBRILE
It 18 R (B R 2 #RAT 8 5R16,893,0007% 7T
Bz AR BRER - NLERE MBI
KAM ARECETERRITHERE
TZBREIMRE RLRTE - ZFRITR
BAR0IFCAISHATER - IR Z
ZRMEBEBT 2RITERNDRERER
WEDEELENHERAR-

BB T IIEETE

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

Euro BT 228 875
HK$ BT 24,920 32,735
25,148 33610

INVESTMENT IN AND LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY

2 R-EERERRRERD—BBHERQ

AfFL 2 &5
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET

RE (BRA)

/N

Investment, at cost
Associate

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT IN AND LOAN TO AN ASSOCIATED COMPANY 2
(Cont’d)

Details of investment in an associated company as at 3| December 2015 and 2014
are as follows:

e BHRRME

R—EBE QR zRERO—HEEA
AEHZER (B)

20159 K204 128318 A — 88
BRRZEREFBOT:

Place of business/ of % of ownership Measurement
Name of entity incorporation interest Principal activity method
BEEE g EMAIL B ERERIL IREH FTEE
2015 2014
Castel Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong - 10% GPS tracking services Equity
MBEEBRRARF BB GPSHR $t AR 7% i

Castel Hong Kong Limited is a private company and there is no quoted market
price available for its shares.

Movement of investment in and loan to an associated company for the year ended

MBRBBERAR/LEDR ERD
W ER]RTE

HZE20I5F R2014F 128318 IEFE

31 December 2015 and 2014 are as follow:

R A A2 A R~ HEEA

AL EREBIT -

Investment in Loan to
an associated an associated
company company
R—BKE n-BREQT
RNAZKRE fEH 2 &
HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TER
Balances at | January 2014 20149 | B | B & 8% | 3,600
Acquisition of ASR Vietnam Y B ASR Vietnam 588 -
Share of loss of Castel Hong Kong Limited BIEMBEBSBERARER Q) (529)
Share of loss of ASR Vietnam FE{5 ASR Vietnam & 18 (134) -
Disposal of ASR Vietnam on acquisition of control PR 1G22 1B 1 B ASR Vietnam (454) -
Balances at 31 December 2014 R20145F 12431 B &84 - 3,071
Balances at | January 2015 2015 | A1 B & - 3,071
Share of loss of Castel Hong Kong Limited BIEMBEBSBERARIER - (108)
Reversal of provision for impairment of BN E TORERRE
loan receivable - 637
Reversal of provision for Impairment of BEMmBEBRERARKE
equity interest of Castel Hong Kong Limited EEE | -
Repayment of loan BEFER - (3,600)
Disposal of Castel Hong Kong Limited HEMBEAGRRA (1 -

Balances at 31 December 2015

201512831 B &8

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interest in the associated

company.

MEAEAKENEE AR 2R
RaE-

et

BEYMREZERERA A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRHE

23 SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally

engaged in the provision of air freight service in the wholesale market.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the executive Directors.
The executive Directors review the Group's internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. Management has determined the operating

segments based on these reports.

The executive Directors assess the performance of the business from a geographical

perspective, i.e. by destinations of freight services.

The segment information provided to the executive Directors for the reportable

segments for the year ended 31 December 2015 is as follows:

B HERIHER
ARBR—EREERRR] ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%
RRATERENBEMHRELETE
%o

BLERRACHRRATESZ B
7§$ o o 2N SE B A O BD R R - DART
FERRBEER EEEBREZSME

BREESH-

HTEFMRAE (AREEREN
B a3 ) FHEEBRR -

HEWISFNRAIBIEFE $ITES
AT D BERMEMN DT ERIT

Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total

B EY)| DABE M @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FTER FTER FTER FTEx

Sales to external customers RINBEFHE 83,650 93,592 282,488 51,063 510,793
Cost of sales HEMA (80,904) (92,900) (222,370) (45,723) (441,897)
Segment results NEEE (324) (82) (7,089) (630) (8,125)
Unallocated expenses, net AABR% FH (23,399)
Depreciation ik (3,128)
Amortisation 25 (47)
Operating loss keBE (35,099)
Finance expense, net BERX FE (1032)
Share of profit of an associated company FE1S — k& 1A A& I 529
Loss before income tax BAEHAER (35,602)
Income tax expense FEREX (3232
Loss for the year EREE (38834)

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR

SALES AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) B HERIHER (B)
Revenue of approximately HK$507,384,000 and HK$3,409,000 were derived from =B IRH MG ERE £ R IR D R4
air freight service and sea freight service, respectively. #%507,384,00078 7T % 3,409,000/ 7T ©
None of the Group’s customers had individually accounted for over 10% of the BIE20I5F R2014F12A31BIEFE
Group's revenue for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014. AEEYEEFENEAEE RS
10% °
As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the Group's non-current assets were mainly 20159 R2014F 12318 AL B ¥
located in Hong Kong, MBEEFEUREE-
The segment information provided to the Executive Directors for the reportable HZEWI4FNAIBLEFE HTES
segments for the year ended 31 December 2014 is as follows: LA BRI D AERMHN D BMEHMT :
Europe America Asia-Pacific Africa Total
B M TAME FEM @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR TET THEL TR
Sales to external customers MIMBEPHE 109,892 77962 619,653 99.966 907473
Cost of sales HERAK (99.952) (74,025) (484,245) (85,599) (743821)
Segment results PEEE 2216 877 30,186 3204 36483
Unallocated expenses, net APERX FHE (9.486)
Depreciation & (3361)
Amortisation B (3%9)
Operating profit gl 8277
Finance income, net BEWA F8 21
Share of losses of an associated company  JE(E — I & A RE 1B (664)
Profit before income tax RS BAT AN 22834
Income tax expense FEHR (%.951)
Profit for the year EREH 12,883

Revenue of approximately HK$903,600,000 and HK$3,873,000 were derived from B MRS M E RIS EE A e M 9 BIIAY

air freight service and sea freight service, respectively. #%903,600,0007 7T }3,873,00078 7T °

BEYREZERERA A
—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME
24  OTHER LOSSES, NET AND OTHER INCOME ¢4 HittER FEREMBA
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Other losses, net HitE8 F8
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME BE L&

equipment (B#8), M (703) 420
Net foreign exchange losses bE X B 1R% (4,724) (4,180)
Gain on remeasuring existing interest in PRI I B 75T 8 2 OASR Logistics

ASR Logistics Company Limited (Vietnam) Company Limited (Vietnam)¥% 8 2

on acquisition ARz W _ 134
Impairment on goodwill (Note 6) EERE (Ms) (630) (557)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment M BB RERERE (M)

(Note 5) (829) (1,061)
Impairment on intangible assets (Note 6) B EERE (M6) (1,429) -
Impairment on investment properties (Note 8) REYFRME (M:Es) (9,492) -
Others HAth 1,669 (22)

(16,138) (5,266)

Other income Higgr A
Service income MRAEUA 804 1,863
Others HAth 230 966
1,034 2,829

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BHRRME

EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales and administrative expenses are analysed as

BHEEDHRX

PIASHE KA RATHF X M5 X D 4T 40

follows: D
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Cost of sales #HE KA 441,897 743821

Employee benefit expenses, including directors’ EERMAX (BEESHM)

emoluments (Note 26) (HisE26) 48,522 84,898
Depreciation e 3,128 3361
Amortisation (Note 6) B (M) 447 359
Operating lease rentals for buildings BFLEHENRS 8,736 ['1,655
Auditor’s remuneration 2 Gl 2,466 2353
Marketing and promotion mnEEREE 6,262 9,171
Legal and professional fees ERLBEXEER 4,647 4,697
Travelling Z IR 1,888 7277
Communication ma 2,035 2,849
Provision for impairment of receivables W IE R BB 3,238 -
Others Hth 7,522 11,318
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses HEMARRITH X #5 530,788 881,759

Cost of sales recognised as expenses mainly included flight charges from airlines and

other freight forwarders.

HERAEXMHEXAETEBREMEAR
AREMEENERNER -

BEYREZERERA A
—E-LFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERRHE

26 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

% EEEMFEX

2015 2014

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR FAET

Salaries, bonus and other welfares AR EMET 45,085 77418
Pension — defined contribution plans (Note (a)) —ERMHREE (MiE@E) 3,437 6,541
Share-based payments R 17 BERE R - 939
48,522 84,898

Note

(@)  Pension — defined contribution plans

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)

@ EBAE-EEHREE

AEBEZREBRHMELEDBIF

in accordance with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance of Hong Kong. flemE—mRsl RESEE (158
Under the rules of the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees in Hong Kong EeEtE]) RERERHENA

are each required to contribute 5% of their gross earnings with a ceiling of HK$ 1,250
per month to the MPF scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions under the scheme. No forfeited

contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in future year.

The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined contribution retirement
schemes covering its full time PRC employees. The schemes are administered by
the relevant government authorities in the PRC. The Group and the PRC eligble
employees are required to make contributions based on certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC and
the relevant government authorities undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees of the Group's subsidiaries in

the PRC. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in

future year.

The Group has no other obligations for the payment of retirement and other post-

retirement benefits of employees or retirees other than the defined contribution

payments as disclosed above.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

P ST E L
27 DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS 7 EEREHREEEFH
(@)  Five highest paid individuals @ ITEEREFMAL
For the year ended 3| December 2015, the five individuals whose BZE0ISFNAIBLEFE K
emoluments were the highest in the Group include 3 directors (2014: 3 SELEERFMALTEEEE
directors), whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in Note F(014F 3REF)  KENF
40. The emoluments paid to the remaining 2 (2014: 2) individuals are as [ INGEZE ki =
follows: BT 2% (20145 280 A A XA
RSB T -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Salary and allowances e K2R 3,620 4,392
Discretionary bonus B IEAL - 1,255
Pension — defined contribution plans BRE—ERMHEE 32 34
3,652 5,681
The emoluments of the remaining 2 (2014: 2) individuals for the year ended BZE0I5F 1A B EFEMNH
31 December 2015 fell within the following bands: T2% (2014%F : 248) AL B9 % A
NFUTHE:
2015 2014
Emolument bands S E
HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000 500,007 7T 2 1,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 2 1,500,000/ 7T | -
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 7T 22,000,000/ 7T -
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7 7T 22,500,000/ 7T I -
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T - -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T -
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 78 7T 24,500,000/ 7T - -
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the REN AEBREAEMNES
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon FhEZ=HMA LN EAF
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2014 nil). MIERMARERRIMALREE
Py A 2R B Sk 1 A BRI AR (B (2014
FoE)-
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd)

Senior management (excluding directors)

The emoluments of the 7 (2014: 7) senior management for the year ended
31 December 2015 fell within the following bands:

27

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ERRHE

EEKEREERETM (&)
b)) EREEE(FEEFES)

HZEI5F12A3IBIEFERTE
(20144 : 78 ) SR BB BH F Y
NFEATEE :

Emolument bands (in HK$)
Below HK$500,001
HK$500,001 — HK$ 1,000,000
HK$1,000,001- HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001— HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,00 - HK$3,000,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001— HK$4,500,000

& E (LABTE)

D FA500,001 7 7T

500,001 7 7T 2 1,000,000 7T
1,000,001 % 7T Z 1,500,0007% 7T
1,500,001 7 7T 22,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 7% 7T 22,500,000/ 7T
2,500,001 % 7T 23,000,000/ 7T
3,500,001 7% 7T 24,000,000/ 7T
4,000,001 7T 4,500,000/ 7T

2015 2014
5 2
I 2
- 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the senior

management as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office (2014 nil).

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BHRRME

FINANCE (EXPENSES)/INCOME, NET 8 EE X)W FE
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
Finance income MEWA
Interest income on short-term bank deposits HERSRTTIF 3R A B 245 578
Finance costs & m A
Interest expense on bank borrowings RITEFFERX (1,264) (342)
Interest expense on finance lease liabilities MEHEEENSHAX (13) (15)
(1,277) (357)
Finance income, net BREWA FER (1,032) 221
INCOME TAX EXPENSE M FRSBIRX

RERREBFEH DA ERE
IR 16.5% (20144F : 16.5% ) M Fi R =H4g
Bt o

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2014: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profits during the year.

SR P 78 B 0 3t m R 32,0002 P9 7T (48
& 1 4931,0007% 7T ) 18 1 72300,000/2 9
7T (FEE R #9291,0007 7T ) H) & 2R 4 I
AN F3%Z9%0 BT L Z 4 m
FaeBRETENEI %M 82
20154 20145 12731 B L FE R
Rl 2R - L ERTAB %
75 %8 $132,000)2 P9 7T 12 £ 600,0002 1 7T
(FBE R #931,0004 7L £581 25078 7T) ©

Macau complementary tax is levied at progressive rates ranging from 3% to
9% on the taxable income above MOP32,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,000) but below MOP300,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$291,000),
and thereafter at a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 31 December 2015 and
2014, a special complementary tax incentive is provided to the effect that tax free
income threshold was increased from MOP32,000 to MOP600,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$3 1,000 to HK$581,250).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

29  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd) 29 FriSHix (&)

A5 B R B P i Y 4 B AR R
PEMBH - SZERBECEMEHER
25% ° E20084F | A1 A8 - A B
B RO BT 2 B PR ER A (R (D Rl 2 )
EREMA I ERA IR R EEE
|0%H) B R B TR HI S8 -

The Group's operations in Mainland China are subject to PRC corporate income
tax. The standard PRC corporate income tax rate is 25%. Withholding income tax
rate of 10% is also imposed on dividends relating to any profits earned by the PRC
incorporated subsidiaries from | January 2008 when distributed to the holding

companies incorporated in Hong Kong.

FB RPBIAMAIMNO IR IR IEF A
AR RPN EA R BELRERR

Taxation outside Hong Kong and Mainland China has been calculated on the

estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates. RIOBEAE -
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAET
Current taxation BITHA
Hong Kong profits tax BEFER 927 2,638
Taxation outside Hong Kong BBBEINRIA
Macau il 134 3,358
Mainland China i A 3 - 1,835
Others Hit 1,432 2310
S 566 . 703
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BEFERBETR (BEEE)
Hong Kong profits tax BENER 2 (64)
Taxation outside Hong Kong BRHEIMIIE - 487
2 1,423
Deferred income tax (Note 10) EIEFTEHE (BEE10) 737 (1613)
3,232 9951

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd)

29

The taxation on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount

that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the

companies comprising the Group as follows:

e BHRRME

FrEHimx (&)
ARERRRTANG FIT R R RN RAE
BRAEEE TR EEN N INETFS
MEENERHBLEZENT

2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISBIAT (E51B),mF (35,602) 22,834
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to RERANENE R BRI A5 =

profits of the respective subsidiaries STEMIRIE (5,956) 3,039
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax AERELEMEHEENIEREE

asset was recognised 7,851 4,827
Income not subject to tax BEZHBA (405) (497)
Expenses not deductible for tax purpose AR X 311 2,179
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B 2 A RERNTIEER (236) (1,196)
Derecognition of prior years deferred income RITERBTFEEREEMEHEE

tax assets 1,840 -
Under-provision in prior years PBREFEEBTIRE 2 1,423
Withholding tax on unremitted earnings of B 3 K & 2 3 R ) BT 2 ]

subsidiaries in Mainland China and Taiwan A BN ) TR - 176
Derecognition of withholding tax on R ETER R B A KA R R

unremitted earnings of subsidiaries in B~ RIAREE B A M TR

Mainland China and Taiwan (175) -
Income tax expense PSR X 3,232 9951
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R

30 EARNINGS PER SHARE 30 BRER
(@) Basic @ &K
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit for the year BRERBN AR R AR
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average AANEGEFER (EE) 5 FIBR A
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. FREETERRNMETISE
B st g -
2015 2014

(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of AR Al w5 H ARE(S (E1E)

the Company (HK$'000) wA (FATT) (40,612) 13,117
Weighted average number of ordinary BETERROMETHE (FR)

shares in issue (in thousand shares) 811,885 800,469
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX (B8B) /BF (Zh#E)

(HK cents per share) (5.00) |.64

1 ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Cont’d)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company has dilutive potential ordinary shares
due to share options. The calculation is done to determine the number of
shares that could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the average
annual market share price of the company's shares) based on the monetary
value of the subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the number of shares

that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the share options.

e BHRRME

BRER (&)

3]

BREERN BB BRI
FABEEELBRARETE
SNE BT INAE T B ot B
e AR A E BN A A
BELAR-BETEET IR
ARBE(REARARNZFE
FHRE)RBEZBRHEE - IR
BARITEBREMNRBEEZE
BEFE LA EREH 2K
8B RBRRATEREREM
ARTZRNBBELR-

2015 2014

Profit attributable to equity holders of ARTERFEREAREREMN (FET)

the Company (HK$'000) (40,612) 13,117
Weighted average number of ordinary BETERRAMETHE (TR)

shares in issue (in thousand shares) 811,885 800,469
Adjustment for share options TLEEARIEE L R B - 1,925
Weighted average number of A ESREERN 2 ERRD

ordinary shares for diluted earnings T2 (TR

per share (in thousands shares) 811,885 802,394
Diluted earnings per share FREERF (AL

(HK cents per share) (5.00) 1.63

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2015 is the
same as the basic earnings per share as there were no potential ordinary
shares due to cancellation of all share options but the potential ordinary
shares due to share options are dilutive for the year ended 31 December

2014.

BHEWISFNRANBLEFETR
BERFEGRERBFIER
F AT i 2 MR AR 3 &
TEEmA - MEZE2014F 12731
AEFEREREEE CEBEYL
R A EEER -

puj

BEMREZERERA A
—E-LFER
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31 DIVIDENDS R
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Interim dividends declared and paid by ARBEIRRIRAH)F B R
the Company — Nil per share —BRE (2014F : §k07
(2014: HKO.7 cents per share) (Note (a)) A (M) - 5,600
Special dividends declared by the Company AARIBEEIRAE AR S
— Nil per share (2014: HK15 cents per share) —BRET (2014F : §RI5EL)
(Note (b)) (FH3E (b)) - 121,029
- 126629
Notes: izt
(@) Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of HK0.7 cents per share () TEZR0I4FSALHERETIRE

amounting to HK$5,600,000 was proposed by the board of Directors on 25 August
2014.

(b)  Special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014 of HKI5 cents per share
amounting to HK$121,029,000 was proposed by the board of Directors on 27
November 2014.The payment of this special dividend is out of the retained earnings
and share premium account pursuant to Articles 136 and 137 of the Article of

Association and in accordance with the Cayman Companies Law.

1 ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS RN ZFERSRERMT
(@)  Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated from (@) PBREISHABAELEEKRS
operations B FHYEE

2015 2014
HK$000 HK$'000
TR TET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETISBIAT (E5HB),mF (35,602) 22,834
Adjustments for: FLATIER
Interest income B UA (245) (578)
Interest expense MBRX 1,277 357
Depreciation e 3,128 3361
Amortisation 3 447 359
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME BERRBEER/ (WE)
plant and equipment 703 (420)
Share of losses of associated company FEILHE N RIEE 108 664
Impairment on property, plant and equipment #1% * B E KRR R E 829 1,061
Impairment on intangible assets B EERE 1,429 -
Impairment of investment properties REMERE 9,492 -
Impairment on goodwill EERE 630 557
Provision for impairment of receivables FEW IR E R 3,238 -
Share-based payment PARR 19 R BB 6 1< 3K - 939
Gain on disposal of ASR Logistics Company & ASR Logistics Company Limited
Limited (Vietnam) (“ASR Vietnam") (Vietnam) ([ ASRVietnam | ) 2 Wz - (134)
Reversal of provision for impairment of BEOEK—HBERRERL
loan receivable from an associated company Bl {E (637) -
(15,203) 29,000
Changes in working capital: LEBEREE:
Trade receivables B 5 ElRIE 70,862 (11,898)
Prepayments, deposits, other receivables and TR FUA ~ £ & ~ H b EURIE K2
other current assets HitmE & & 5,233 (3,295)
Pledged deposits BEHER 579 19915
Trade payables HHEMNKIE (101,410) 77,703
Other payables and accruals B RIE R ERTE R (16,830) 6,282
(56,769) 117,707
BEYREZERERA R

—E-LFER
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32 NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Contd) R HEABRESHRERMT (&)

(b)  In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposal of b) REERLHRERA HEY
property, plant and equipment comprise: ¥ BERRENAESREER
&
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
Net book amount (Note 5) BREFE (M) 1,383 1,195
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEME BREREE (BB,
plant and equipment (Note 24) Yz (Bi5E24) (703) 420
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWX BERRERETEA
plant and equipment 680 1,615
33 COMMITMENTS B EE
Operating lease commitments REHERE
The Group leases certain office premises under non-cancellable operating lease AEBRBTAHECEHERZERE
agreements, ETHREYE-
The Group's future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable AEERZE T HELEHETRTH
operating leases are as follows: ARFEBENTLTMNT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

TExT THET

Not later than | year —FUR 4933 8,559
Later than | year and not later than 5 year —FUERFURN 3,309 5,094
8,242 13,653

1 ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ACQUISITION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

On 8 November 2015, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
in relation to the acquisition of the entire equity interest of Nobletree Limited
(“Nobletree") and the total amount of shareholder's loan owing by Nobletree to
United Win International Corporation at a consideration of HK$85,150,000 which
was satisfied by the allotment and issuance of 131,000,000 shares of the Company
at the issue price of HK$0.65 per share. The transaction was completed on 18
December 2015 (the “Completion date™) and the consideration was approximately
HK$95,630,000 with reference to the share price of HK$0.73 per share as of the
Completion date. Before the acquisition Group. Nobletree had no business activities
except for holding commercial properties for self use. Accordingly, Nobletree's
activities did not constitute a business and the Group's intention of such acquisition
was to acquire the commercial properties held by Nobletree for rental purposes.
Accordingly, such acquisition was accounted for as if it was an acquisition of the

underlying investment properties.

e BHRRME

WIBIRE Y%

R20ISF I A8E  AEETLEE R
& WA A B LAR 885,150,000/ 7T W
B Nobletree Limited ([ Nobletree | ) 2
% EBB% # K& Nobletree#E /K United Win
International Corporationf] I% 5 & 51 42
B mMRESBERRETEESRSE
JUBC 8 K 347 131,000,0008 A2 A1 15
SR ZRHBER0I5F12A188 ([57E
BX BB e K& 2 EH E T A
HzBRhEXRGRO7IET REALY
95,630,000 7T - N AN BB AT - BR 5
B ERAREEDEIN  Nobletreell & [
2558 - FUL - Nobletree Z )& B) 0 1
B —EEBEAREETZNESE
& TEUEE Nobletreels B 2 B X W £ 1A
SAE At ZWBEEARRIKE
HEAREME-

At the date
of acquisition
U B
HK$'000
TET
Investment properties KREME 95,664
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables FARNFIE  'E R EAEWIE 32
Cash and cash equivalent ReLBReZEEY 2
Accrual and other payable EEtERREMENKIE (68)
Total acquisition consideration WERERR 95,630
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, RiZaReRERN WENE LA
the consideration paid for acquisition of subsidiary, net of XRHzRE(HREEFRSE) B
cash acquired was comprised of:
Consideration paid by cash BRREXNZRE -
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired HEEGEZReRE2EFED 2)
Net cash inflow ReRmAFH 2
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35

Bt 75 R AR B

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related parties refer to entities in which the Company has the ability, directly or

indirectly, to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other

party in making financial and operating decisions, or directors or officers of the

Company and its subsidiaries.

35

BHARS

BB 7 5 AN R BIRE S B R SRR I A
— G AT R ERRE

BRERFENINER SEARARE

MBRARIMEZHRRBE -

Except as disclosed elsewhere, during the year, the followings transactions were PREMBEAKREEIN RER - HE
carried out with related parties: BAETZRHWT
(@)  Transaction @ X2
2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT TAT
Interest expense to a shareholder: A—BREXMF SR :
Hollyview International Limited Hollyview International Limited 43 -
Sales to an associated company: fr) — FEJ Bk i X R EH G -
ASR Vietnam ASRVietnam - [46
Cost of services paid to A — & R A
an associated company: AT RRIS A
ASR Vietnam ASRVietnam - 6

Sales to and purchases from ASR Vietnam throughout the period from 6
March 2014 to 12 August 2014 were conducted at terms and notes mutually

agreed.

On 23 September 2015, the Company and Vision Finance Group Limited
(“Vision Finance") and Mr. Zhang Chengliang (the “Vendors”) entered into
the sales and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”), pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Vendors have
conditionally agreed to sell the entire issued share capital of Vision Finance for
a cash consideration of HK$7,000,000.Vision Finance was indirectly owned as
to 36.75% by the spouse of a director of the Company. Subsequent to year
end, the Company and the Vendors entered into a termination agreement to

terminate the Agreement.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

H2014F3 860 22014588 128
EAREI M ASR Vietnam{E H HUSHE 2
BENREFERBE 2 EHRE

70

2015598238 » AR R EHEE
cREEARAR ([E8eR])

&@E)?KE?EE”E?H)E B

ENEACEA L ADRE § A
AEAKRHAERBREMENCA
BHRAEHEEE 2Rz 2HE
BTN - 32 B /R7,0000007%
T BEEERBEARR—RES
ZE BRI 3675% S o INF
Rig RRBIEEFEI KRR
AL Z R -
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont’d)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE MR

3 BEERE (&)

Balance (b) #tk
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT THET
Loan to an associated company (note 22) r] — Bk & R RI{EH 2 B3R
(Pi5E22) - 3071
Amount due to non-controlling interests JE FE 12 AR 2 SR 1B 284 -
Loans from a shareholder BRERER 20,043 -
Key management compensation () ETEEBASHMH

Key management includes Directors and senior management. The

compensation paid or payable to key management for employee services is

shown below:

TEEEAERREZRSRE
BE-pEEREEMHEMNE
2EEAEBNFMIRMOT

2015 2014

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FATT

Salaries, bonus and other welfares He A MEMmETR 8,898 23,191
Pension — defined contribution plans BRe - ERUERETE 141 274
9,039 23,465

BENRERER A
—E-HEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR R

36 BANK GUARANTEES % RITHRE
Certain commercial banks have provided bank guarantees to certain airlines BBRE T ARAE THERARRIT
and integrated carriers as securities for purchase of cargo space, under banking BE ATARROTERETMELR
facilities provided to certain subsidiaries of the Company. At 31 December 2015, R EBE NRRRITER (EREE
the guarantees granted amounted to approximately HK$31,665000 (2014 EWRe LI o R20I5F 1274318 -
HK$80,087,000) (Note 21). B ER A 531,665,000 7T (2014
£ :80087,000/87T) (Mf&E2l)
These bank guarantees are denominated in the following currencies: ZERTERATIEEE:
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
— HKS —ABT 7,560 11,010
-Usb -7 14,840 57,363
~RMB —AR% 2,665 2778
- EUR —BT 6,600 7,766
— Others —Hi - 1,170
31,665 80,087
37  ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 37 BRRERATF

ASR Victory was previously the immediate and ultimate holding company of
the Group. On 12 January 2015, ASR Victory transferred 560,000,000 shares,
representing approximately 69.4% of the entire issued share capital of the Company,
to Hollyview International Limited, Excellent Success Asia Limited, Mass Talent
Financial Limited and Mr. Sang Kanggiao (collectively the “Joint Offerors”™). There are

no individual shareholders having a controlling interest over the Group.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

ASR Victory e BI R A KB 2 BE# K&
BB AR 2 R2015F 1 A 128 - ASR
Victory#3 560,000,000 B 13 (16 A 2
AR EITARAL69.4% ) T Hollyview
International Limited* & F M AR A
] * Mass Talent Financial Limited X & FE 5
TE(FRBIMeENT]) WEEX
SEHEA TR ERIRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY (Cont’d)

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 29 January 2016, Excellent Success Asia
Limited entered into an agreement to transfer 100,000,000 shares, representing
approximately 10.60% of the entire issued share capital of the Company, to Beijing
Enterprises Medical and Health Industry Group Limited (“BEMH").The transfer was
completed on 18 March 2016 and BEMH became the largest shareholder of the
Company which held approximately 23.86% of the entire issued share capital of the

Company at the day of completion of transfer:

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On 7 January 2016, the Company and Vision Finance Group Limited and Mr

Zhang Chengliang entered into a termination agreement to terminate the sale and
purchase agreement entered on 23 September 2015 for the proposed acquisition

of Vision Finance Asset Management Limited.

On 5 February 2016, the Company and a third party (the “Subscriber”) entered
into a subscription agreement pursuant to which the Company has conditionally
agreed to allot and issue, and the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe,
for 30,370,000 ordinary shares of the Company for HK$0.65 per share (the
“Subcription”). On 26 February, 2016, the Subscription was completed and a net
proceeds of approximately HK$19,700,000 was received by the Company on the

same date.

On 9 March 2016, Beijing Sports Industry Group Limited (“Beijing Sports”), an
indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a memorandum
of understanding (the “MOU") with two independent third parties, to acquire
55% of equity interests in Beijing Si Bo You Sports Technology Company Limited.
The preliminary consideration for the intended acquisition is RMB22 million and is
expected to be settled by Beijing Sports in cash.The MOU is not legally binding and

will expire in six months.

37

38

e BHRRME

RAERAT (&)
REEBRBRBHERE R20I6FIA
VH BREEMNBERARG -0
ZANAEBARALIEEERRERS
EERAG([EBERE])EE
100,000,0008% i& 13 (18 & WA 2 7] 2
B BT ALI060%) - ZEEE R
201653 A 188 ST pK i 3k 125 B8 B i R it
SEKEEARAEARRIZHEETR
RA923.86%  BLARAR R AR ARRR ©

FEAKSER

R2016FIA78  ARRIEEEEHE
EAE DT RRAR LT LRIER
Z RIE2015F9 A AR ENERS
CRMEEERERARGIZEER

2
% °

R2016F2A58  AEBE-FFE=
FREFDILRBWZE Bt

ARRIEEBRHERERZERET M
REFEEIGRERERGR065E TR
FE30370000 A A R @Ak ([RES
) - 12016F28268 - RBEBBLE
ST R AR B R B RS SRIE 5
#719,700,000% 7T ©

R2016F3A9B ARG zRAELRE
MBARIREBEEXEEAERAA
([ERBEEMEBELE=FIL
TEETS ([REETS]) AR
IR BEEEERHRER QA Z55%
B-BRTWBEEZNIRERARE
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38

Bt 75 R AR B

SUBSEQUENT EVENT (Cont'd)

As described in Note 19, loans payable to Hollyview in the amount of
HK$20,000,000 as at 31 December 2015 were due on demand. In March 2016,
an additional amount of HK$15,000,000 was drawn down under the Hollyview
Facility. In March 2016, Hollyview has agreed not to demand repayment before
24 November 2017, the facility termination date, of any amount drawn under the
Hollyview Facility and not to demand repayment of the Hollyview Loan before 10
November 2017, the loan maturity date.

As described in Note 21, the Group breached the covenant requirements of certain
banking facilities offered by a bank as at 31 December 2015. In March 2016, the
relevant bank has renewed the banking facilities granted to the Group but reduced
the total facilities to HK$47,000,000 until 31 May 2016 which will be further
reduced to HK$26,000,000 from | June 2016 onwards. Certain restrictive financial
covenant requirements were also revised. In addition, the invoice finance facility will
be terminated on 31 May 2016 such that the bank borrowings of HK$16,893,000 as
at 31 December 2015 will be due for repayment then. As at the date of approval of
the consolidated financial statements, the Group is in compliance with the restrictive
financial covenant requirements under the renewed banking facilities. These facilities

are subject to renewal by 15 June 2016.

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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NP FE19FT R - 7A20156 12831 B f&
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B2 RORE -M0165F38  BREARTT
BERRTASE ZRITRE R
B HBER D 2£47,0000008 7T EZ2016
FSA3IHAL  WR20I6F6A I BEH
i#E— 25 26,000,000/ 7T © & TR I
HERE AR TEIE BB o U oh - %
EREBR2016F5A3I BERLE - B R
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e B RRME
BALANCE SHEET H HEREXR
2015 2014
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT TET
ASSETS iE
Non-current assets *RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REHEBARRIRE 89,340 127,703
Property, plant and equipment EN S 6 -
89,346 127,703
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments and other receivables A FRIE B E A e ORR IR 165 40
Amount due from subsidiaries FEUSFf B 2 R 5R0R 15919 180,750
Cash and cash equivalents RekAeEEY 4,583 6,813
L 20667 | 187603 _
Total assets REE 110,013 315306
EQUITY B
Share capital R 4,689 4,034
Reserves 1 82,730 189,967
Total equity mER 87,419 194,001
LIABILITY &
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accruals Hi RN RIELEER 211 276
Amount due to subsidiaries N EENGIE 2,340 -
Loans from a shareholder BERER 20,043 -
Dividend payable FEfTAR 2 - 121,029
Towlliablides  _____________________®8&® _________________________ 2594 | 121305
Total equity and liabilities HEEREE 110,013 315,306
The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on 29 ARRBEEBBREN2016F3A29H
March 2016 and was signed on its behalf, RMEESHA THATRERER-
Hu Yebi Niu Zhongjie
HEE FERE
Director Director
Bx %
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39 BALANCE SHEET (Cont’d) 9 EEEEREA)
(@)  Reserves at Company level @ ARARAEENREE
Company
LN
Share-based Retained
Share payment earnings/
premium reserve  accumulated loss Total
PR 5
ERN  REEN/
R EE AR 2iER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTER TER TER
Balances at | January 2015 R0I5E | A1 BH &
Dividend B e 176,800 2458 10,709 189,967
Release upon cancellation of ERERRETHED
vested share options - (2,458) 2458 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—FEHEAF 94975 - - 94975
Loss for the year FRER - - (202212) (202212)
Balance at 3| December 2015 RI5F 12831 BEV&EER 271,775 - (189,045) 82,730
Representing: e
Reserves e (189,045)
Proposed dividend BERE -
(189,045)
Balances at | January 2014 R2014F | A1 BH &8 197,804 1519 162,343 361,666
Dividend X (27.047) - (233782) (261,029)
Employee share option scheme-Value of 5 T AR #E52
employee services (Note 23) -BIRBEE (F:F23) - 939 - 939
Exercise of share options TR E 6243 - - 6243
Proftt for the year FERE R - - 82,148 82,148
Balance at 3| December 2014 R2014% 12831 A1 5 176,800 2458 10709 189,967
Representing: g
Reserves G 10,709
Proposed dividend &= 3§} -
10709

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES 40 EEFZLEZ (FBATMKH (5
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES 622%) $383% AR (RBEESA
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF BER)RG (FenNGE)REAL
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION TRAREZEE)
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments @ EERIETBAEHSE
The remunerations of each director and the chief executive are set out REERTETBRABZFHHE
below: BIEAT
For the year ended 3| December 2015: EZ2015F12F31HILEE:
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, BREAARASEMNBARE
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking: FZ @A R E A 3R 2 Bl
£
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's other
services in
connection
Remunerations with the
paidor  management of
Employer’s receivable  the affairs of
Estimated contribution to in respect  the Company or
Discretionary - money value of Housing  aretirement accepting office  its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses  other benefits allowance  benefit scheme asdirector  undertaking Total
RHESH
EERLNE
FENELR
RthEA 2 EXn FEEMES SH2HEM
CHECH RUEFE  BEEAY BREHD
g #&  BERL BE  (REE 2B EWZEH  ReHE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name i3 TR TR TRz TER TER TER TR TER TER
Executive Director #ES
Mr: Hui Yebi (Note (i) BEEEE () 14 - - - - - - - 14
Mr:Niu Zhongjie (Note (i)) EERE () 124 - - - - - - - 124
Mr: Zhu Shixing (Note (i) i (i) - - - - - - - - -
M Lam KaTak (Note (i) - - - - - - - - -
Ms.Leung Pui Man (Note (7)) 124 - - - - - - - 124
MrYu Ho Yuen, Sunny (Note (i) - 1312 - - - 6 - - 1318
Mr:Mak Chi Hung, Richard (Note (i) - 908 - - - 6 - - 914
Mr. Law Kai Lo, Nikii (Note (ii)) - 1,266 - - - 6 - - 1,72
Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Lok Lawrence Yuen Ming (Note ()) ) 8 - - - - - - - 83
Mr Xin Luo Lin (Note (i)) ) 8 - - - - - - - 8
M Pan Lihui (Note (7)) ( ) 8 - - - - - - - 8
MrWei Jin Cai (Note (ii)) PR T R ) 160 - - - - - - - 160
D Zhang Xianlin (Note (i) REMEL (W) 160 - - - - - - - 160
DrTyen Kan Hee, Anthony (Note (i) Btz (W) 180 - - - - - - - 180
1121 3486 - - - 18 - - 4,625

Note i The directors are appointed on 23 April 2015.

Note i~ The directors are appointed on 24 December 2015.

Note iii.  The directors are resigned on 23 April 2015.

MisEi: ZEEEH2015F4H23H

EZR{T-

&k : ZEESR0I5F 128248
EERT-

Mitii: ZEEER2015F4H230
BT

BEMREZERERA A
—E-LFER
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40 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES 40 EERZREZR (FBLTAKM (F
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES 622F) #3830 A B (KREESF
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF BER) RO (Fe2GE)RER L
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION TRABEZRE) (&)

(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Cont’d)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont'd) @ ESRTETBAEME (&)
For the year ended 3| December 2014: BE014FNABILFE:
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director, BEBREARRASENBEARE
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking: EZ @A R E A 3 rE d z Bl

5
Certain of the comparative information of directors’ emoluments for the ERIRBAIAREOIBREZBE
year ended 31 December 2014 previously disclosed in accordance with WHEFENRAIBLEFEEEMS
the predecessor Companies Ordinance have been restated in order to ZETHBREHEDEY AE
comply with the new scope and requirements by the Hong Kong Companies SEBRRE (BenE)ZH
Ordinance (Cap. 622). s MARTE
Emoluments
paid or
receivable
in respect of
director's other
Services in
connection
Remunerations with the
paidor  management of
Employer's receivable  the affairs of
Estimated contribution to inrespect  the company or
Discretionary  money value of Housing ~ aretirement acceptingofice  its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses  other benefts allowance  benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
EEESH
2N
FENBAR
AftERIZ BXm BEELEE  SHIER
RS RIVERIE  BEERT  RBENT
#g £ BERM BE  BERY U EhzEM  EhGZEe st
HKS 000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
Name #2 Fin FiEn Tan A Fin Fitn Fn Fin Fin
Executive Director HiTES
MYy Ho Yuen, Sunny REREE - 2970 - - 2000 7 - - 4987
Mr: Mak Chi Hung, Richard Bkt - 2450 - - 2000 17 - - 4467
Mr Law Kai Lo, Niki FERLE - 2540 - 2,000 17 - - 4557
Independent non-executive directors BuknEs
MrWei fin Cai RBIRE 480 - - - - - 480
D Zhang Xianlin FEMEL 40 - - - - - - - 40
DrTyen Kan Hee, Anthony BiEEL 540 - - - - - - - 540
1,500 7540 - - 6000 51 - - 1511

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE (CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF
INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTOR) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Cont'd)

(b)

(d)

Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits during
the years ended 31st December 2015 and 2014.

Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any termination benefits during
the years ended 3 st December 2015 and 2014.

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’

services

During the years ended 31st December 2015 and 2014, no consideration
was paid by the company to third parties for making available directors'

services.

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such

directors

During the years ended 3Ist December 2015 and 2014, there are no loans,
quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled

bodies corporate by and connected entities with such directors.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

Except as disclosed in Note 19, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company has a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of 31st December 2015
and 2014 or at any time during the years ended 3Ist December 2015 and
2014.
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GLOSSARY
Tk

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following terms shall have

the following meanings.

"AOE Freight” means
"AOE Freight means
(Shenzhen)”
"ASR Victory" means
"BAHT" means
“Board" means
"Company” means
"Director(s)" means
“EUR" means
"GBP" means
"“Group” means

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2015

AQE Freight (HK) Limited (%)) & i& A IR 22 7), a limited
liability company incorporated in Hong Kong on 30 April
1991 and wholly-owned by ASR Limited

AQE Freight (Shenzhen) Limited (%% BIR & B R 12 (%
AR A]), a limited liability company incorporated in
PRC on 18 November 2004 and wholly-owned by AOE
Freight

ASR Victory Limited, a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands on 3 June 201 |

Thai Baht, the lawful currency of Thailand

the board of Directors of the Company

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited, an exempted company
incorporated with limited liability under the laws of the
Cayman Islands and the Shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange

the director(s) of the Company

Euro, the lawful currency of Europe

Great British Pound, the lawful currency of United Kingdom

the Company and its subsidiaries
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"GSA”

"HK$" and "HK

cents”

"Hong Kong"

“INR"

JPY”

"KHR"

"KOR"

“Listing Rules”

“Macau”

“Main Board”

“Model Code”

"MOP"

“NTD"

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

means

a general sales agent appointed by an airline which
typically authorises such a general sales agent to exclusively
represents the airline in a region or territory in relation to
that airline in particular segment of business e.g. air cargo

space or passengers tickets

Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful

currency of Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Indian Rupee, the lawful currency of India

Japanese Yen, the lawful currency of Japan

Cambodian Riel, the lawful currency of Cambodia

Korea Won, the lawful currency of Korea

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange

Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC

the stock market operated by the Hong Kong Stock

Exchange, which excludes the Growth Enterprise Market

and the options market

model code for securities by directors of listed issuers as

set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing Rules

Macau Patacas, the lawful currency of Macau

Taiwan dollars, the lawful currency of Taiwan
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GLOSSARY

AR

"PRC" means
“Prospectus” means
“Reorganisation”  means
“RM" means
"RMB" means
“RP” means
"SFO" means
"SGD” means
“Share(s)" means
“Shareholder(s)”  means
“Stock Exchange”  means
"US$" means

ASR Logistics Holdings Limited
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the People’s Republic of China excluding, for the purpose
of this annual report, Hong Kong, the Macau Special

Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan

the Company's prospectus dated 30 December 201 |

the corporate reorganisation of our Group conducted in

preparation for the Listing

Malaysia Ringgit, the lawful currency of Malaysia

Renminbi, the lawful currency of PRC

Indonesian Rupiah, the lawful currency of Indonesia

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the

Laws of Hong Kong) as amended, supplemented or

otherwise modified from time to time

Singapore dollars, the lawful currency of Singapore

share(s) of HK$0.005 each in the share capital of the

Company

shareholder(s) of the Company

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

United States Dollar, the lawful currency of the United

States of America
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